FILE COPY

Confidential

The University of Texas
Investment Management
Company

Presentation Materials
Board of Directors Meeting

April 29, 1999

k:\users\oam\utimco\bod\990429\990429.doc



FILE COPY

UTIMCO
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

April 29, 1999

AGENDA

12:30 p.m. - 12:35 p.m. Call to Order/Approval of Minutes of February 24, 1999 and
‘March 25, 1999 Meetings (Tab 1)*

Overview
12:35 p.m. - 1:15 p.m. Funds Performance Review (Tab 2)
Recent Developments/Legislation

1:15 p.m. - 2:45 p.m. LTF Asset Allocation (Tab 3)
- History
- Asset Allocation Study: Cambridge Associates
2:45 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. [Break]
Alternative Assets
3:00 p.m. - 4:30 p.m. Non Marketable/Private Equity (Tab 4)

Program Review (Since Inception)
Review of Direct Co-Investment Portfolio
Review of Projected FY1999-FY2002 Activity

Marketable/Hedge Funds (Tab 5)
Program Review (Since Inception)

Scope of Cambridge Associates Evaluation of Alternative
Assets Portfolios

Other
4:30 p.m. - 4:40 p.m. Amendments to Endowment Investment Policies (Tab 6)*

4:40 p.m. Adjournment

* Requires action by resolution.

Next Scheduled Meeting:  Thursday, June 24, 1999

\\uts_oam\v012\users\oam\utimco\bod\990429\99042§.doc



For consideration by the Board of Directors of The University of Texas Investment
Management Company (the “Board”) — April 29, 1999

Resolution No. 1
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors held on February 24, 1999 and
March 25, 1999 be and are hereby approved.

Resolution No. 2
RESOLVED, that the amendments to the Permanent University Fund, Long Term Fund, and
Separately Invested Funds Investment Policy Statements be and are hereby approved.

\luts_oam\vol2\users\oam\utimco\bod\990429\990429.doc




MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of Directors of The University of Texas Investment Management Company (the
“Corporation”) convened in a special meeting on the 24th day of February, 1999, at the offices of
Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst Incorporated, 200 Crescent Court, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas, said
meeting having been called by the Chairman, with notice provided to each Director in
accordance with the Bylaws. Participating in the meeting were the following members of the
Board of Directors:

Thomas O. Hicks, Chairman
Robert Allen

Susan M. Byrne

J. Luther King, Jr.

Tom Loeffler

A. W. Riter, Jr.

thus, constituting a majority and quorum of the Board of Directors. Director William H.
Cunningham was absent. Also participating in the meeting were Thomas G. Ricks, President of
the Corporation; Cathy Iberg, Secretary of the Corporation; Dave Russ and Austin Long of
Corporation management (“Management”); and Jerry Turner, Vinson & Elkins, legal counsel for
the Corporation. The meeting was called to order at 12:02 p.m.

Minutes

The first item to come before the Board of Directors was approval of the minutes of the meetings
of the Board of Directors held on December 10, 1998 and December 23, 1998, copies of which
had previously been furnished to each Director. Upon motion duly made and seconded, the
following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors held on
December 10, 1998 and December 23, 1998 be and are hereby approved in the forms
provided. '

Funds Review

The next item was a report on funds managed by the Corporation, copies of which were
previously furnished to each Director. Mr. Ricks stated that the total funds under management
had increased in value by $1.6 billion from August 31, 1998 to January 31, 1999. Total
endowment funds accounted for approximately $10 billion and the balance was in operating
funds. ' '

1

1990224mn.doc




Permanent University Fund (PUF) - Mr. Ricks presented the projected income management
program for the PUF through the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005. He reviewed with the
Board the income comparison for the 5 months ended January 31, 1998 to the 5 months
ended January 31, 1999. Mr. Ricks stated that the S&P index cash equalization program has
been successful to date and therefore at this time there was no need to increase the PUF’s
fixed income allocation to 40% in order to increase income. Projected income for the year
was estimated to be close to the $260 million target. Next, Mr. Ricks presented a comparison
of the PUF returns against the Cambridge Universe for the periods ended September 30, 1998
and answered the Directors questions.

Long Term Fund (LTF) - Mr. Ricks reviewed the LTF’s performance against the Cambridge
Universe for the period ended September 30, 1998. Next, Mr. Ricks reviewed with the Board
the LTF efficient frontier graph. This graph compares the LTF’s actual allocation, the LTF’s
policy allocation, and other large educational institution’s asset allocations against the Black
Litterman data on an unconstrained, loosened constraint and constrained to the LTF policy
ranges. Mr. Ricks reviewed with the Board the allocation to alternative equities for the 25
largest college and university endowments as reported by Cambridge Associates. He stated
that among this universe the mean allocation to alternative assets was 26.9%. The LTF’s
policy allocation is 18%. He stated that Cambridge Associates was hired by the Corporation
to evaluate the LTF’s policy portfolio asset mix. Mr. Ricks then answered the Directors
questions.

Mr. Ricks and Mr. Russ reviewed with the Board the active manager technology exposure in
the PUF and the LTF against the S&P 500 growth and value indicies. They also reviewed
the characteristics of the technology indices relative to the P/E ratios and dividend yields.
This review was in response to Director Homer Luther’s question as to whether the
Corporation should create a separate technology asset class. Mr. Ricks and Mr. Russ
responded to the Directors questions and it was concluded that a separate technology asset
class would not be created.

Mr. Ricks proposed to the Board an increase in the LTF distribution rate. He reviewed with
the Board the spending policy and a summary of the LTF’s distribution history and answered
their questions. Upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution was
unanimously adopted:

~ RESOLVED, that the annual distribution rate for the Long Term -
Fund be increased from $0.21 per unit to $0.215 per unit, effective
November 30, 1999.

Mr. Ricks proposed a change to the performance benchmarks for the Alternative Equities
Asset Class. He proposed to change the benchmark for Alternative Marketable Equities from

the CPI + 8% to the 90-day T-Bills + 7% and the benchmark for Alternative Nonmarketable

2
990224mn.doc




Equities from S&P 500 Index + 5% to 15%. Mr. Ricks answered the Director’s questions.
The Directors concluded that a 17% benchmark return for the Alternative Equities
Nonmarketable asset class would be more appropriate. Upon motion duly made and
seconded the following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the performance benchmarks for the Alternative
Equities-Marketable and Alternative Equities-Nonmarketable asset
classes for the Permanent University Fund and the Long Term Fund be
changed to U.S. T-bill rate +7%, and 17%, respectively.

Y2K Update

Ms. Iberg presented to the Board an updated status on the Corporation’s efforts regarding the
Y2K issue. Copies of certain materials were previously furnished to each Director. Ms. Iberg
presented a Year 2000 Risk Matrix and a Year 2000 Status Report. She concluded by stating
what the Corporation’s follow up steps would be over the ensuing months and answered the
Directors questions. She stated that in her opinion the Corporation was well positioned in its
efforts to address the Y2K problem.

Amendment No. 3 to Corporation’s Cafeteria Plan

Mr. Ricks presented to the Board proposed amendment No. 3 to the Corporation’s Cafeteria
Plan, copies of which were previously furnished to each Director. These amendments were
required to acknowledge a change in the plan year in addition to compliance changes
required by the Internal Revenue Code. Upon motion duly made and seconded the following
resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, the Amendment Number Three to The University of Texas
Investment Management Company Cafeteria Plan, a copy of which shall
be filed with these minutes, is hereby approved and adopted, effective
March 1, 1999, and the proper officers of the Corporation are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of the
Plan one or more counterparts of the Amendment; and

RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Corporation shall act as soon
as possible to notify employees of the Corporation of the adoption of
Amendment Number Three to The University of Texas Investment
Management Company Cafeteria Plan by delivering to each employee a
copy of the summary description of the changes to the Plan in the form of
the Summary Plan Description — Material Modification presented to this
meeting, which form is hereby approved.

990224mn.doc




Operating Funds

Mr. Ricks stated that the U.T. System guidelines for the component institutions to invest in
the BGI U.S. Debt Index Fund and the Equity Index Fund were available. Copies were
previously furnished to each Director. Mr. Ricks stated that this investment option was
proceeding along as expected.

GSAM presentation

Mr. Russ introduced Mr. Bob Litterman from Goldman Sachs Asset Management Company
who gave a presentation on investment risk management. Mr. Litterman defined the meaning
of investment risk and summarized the investment risks of the LTF relative to the various
asset classes in which it invests. Following the discussion Mr. Litterman answered the
Directors questions and left the meeting.

Public Markets Review

Mr. Russ reviewed with the Board the changes that had taken place regarding the investment
in public markets for the calendar year ended December 31, 1998. Copies of these materials
were previously furnished to each Director. The discussion focused on public market
manager changes, a comparison of asset allocation changes to move the LTF closer to its
policy portfolio, and a review of the efficient frontier and the performance of individual
managers, as well as the asset class, for the year. Mr. Russ answered the Director’s questions
following the presentation.

Private Markets Review

Mr. Ricks reviewed with the Board the status of the Alternative Equities Nonmarketable
program, copies of which were previously furnished to each Director. He reviewed the
changes in commitments to capital and the component changes in invested capital through
November 30, 1998 and projected through the year ended August 31, 2002. Mr. Ricks
presented a graph, which showed the IRR by vintage year, the percent of the vintage that is
invested, and the size of the commitments. Mr. Ricks proceeded to answer the Director’s
questions then turned the discussion over to Austin Long. Mr. Long presented the
Corporation’s Co-Investment Program. The presentation focused on the pre-Corporation co-
investments; the co-investment strategy; the value-added activities; the Corporation’s co-
investment deal inflow; and a review of the Corporation’s co-investments. Mr. Long
addressed the Director’s questions regarding the program.

990224mn.doc




Open Records Status

Mr. Ricks presented a report on the Corporation’s open records requests, copies of which
were previously furnished to each Director. Mr. Ricks stated that a great deal of the
Corporation’s time is being utilized in responding to these requests and most of the requests
are from one individual. The Board discussed this issue in great detail. It was suggested that
the Corporation present this information to the Attorney General’s office to discuss the need
for legislative anti-abuse provisions.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was
adjourned at approximately at 4:00 p.m.

Secretary:

APPROVED:

Chairman:

990224mn.doc







MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of Directors of The University of Texas Investment Management Company (the
“Corporation”) convened in a special meeting on the 25th day of March, 1999 by means of
conference telephone enabling all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other, said
meeting having been called by Chairman Hicks with notice provided to each Director in
accordance with the Bylaws. Participating in the meeting were the following members of the
Board of Directors:

Thomas O. Hicks, Chairman
Robert H. Allen

William H. Cunningham

J. Luther King, Jr.

Tom Loeffler

thus, constituting a majority and quorum of the Board of Directors. Directors Susan M. Byme and
A. W. Riter, Jr. were absent. Also participating in the meeting were Thomas G. Ricks, President of
the Corporation; Cathy Iberg, Secretary of the Corporation; Jerry Turner, Vinson & Elkins, legal
counsel for the Corporation; and Monty Jones of the UT System Office of Development and
External Relations. The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.

Disclosure of Private Investment Information

The first and only matter to come before the Board of Directors was a discussion regarding the
disclosure of information on private investments. Dr. Cunningham introduced the subject stating
that questions had been raised in the news media and by legislators concerning the need by the
public to be able to assure itself that private investments were being managed prudently and
without conflicts of interests. Mr. Ricks stated that in the past Corporation management had not
disclosed the names of individual principals managing the Corporation’s private investments or
the performance of the individual investments, citing both the existence of confidentiality
agreements and the competitive disadvantage management believed such disclosure would
create. He further stated that the withholding of such information had been consistently affirmed
by the State Attorney General’s office.

The directors discussed the Corporation’s position with respect to the execution of
confidentiality agreements and the competitive disadvantage that might occur from disclosure of
security specific returns. Upon motion duly made and seconded, the following resolutions were
adopted with all Directors voting for approval:

RESOLVED, that the Corporation obtain permission from each private investment
general partner or equivalent counterparty for UTIMCO to disclose the names of the

1
\ts_oam\vol2\users\cam\utimeo\bod\minutes\990325mn.doc




individual principals managing such investments on behalf of the Corporation; and

RESOLVED, that no private investment shall be made with any entity in the future unless
the general partner or equivalent counterparty authorizes the disclosure of the names of
the individual principals managing such investments on behalf of the Corporation; and

RESOLVED, that the investment returns of each private investment be made available to
the public upon request.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was
adjourned at approximately 2:20 p.m.

Secretary:

APPROVED:

Chairman:

\luts_oam\vol2\users\oam\utimco\bodiminutes\990325mn.doc




(1

@

o Mrl. oAyl vl @ o~ 77 37/ x_w\\\ INV G2:8 66/LE/E SIX6686WNE \6686ANSANNI TIV\DNdLdH\AIHYHS\SHISNVH
7 % \V 7 l/.”\U *\Q.
by g 2PS @ S
20ce9 §'68€°C v'ese’t y'eve 00 L'€9L 10€6°¢ 1661 ‘LE Isnbny
1'5€8°9 £°069°C G'6SS‘L S8l 00 €616 vsvLy 2661 ‘L€ 18nbny
G'€0g‘.L 9°2€8°C 0€es Sv6l 1'969 06LLL 6°0LV'V €661 ‘LE Isnbny
Tocr'L 2'866°C G9LS 0'zee €'Sv6 adtAt 0'8eh'y ¥661 ‘Lg Isnbny
0'65¥'8 §00S°€ 6°00¢ 2'92s JAANE L'6¥G‘L G856V G661 ‘Le Isnbny
69106 8¥S.L'e cert 719G Leee’t LgLLL 1'262's 9661 ‘L€ 18NBNY
€080l 0cLY'Y ol £'69G rAEN" 0sele £89¢‘9 /661 ‘Lg 1snbny
9'/82°LL S0LL'Y 'LSL 8'G59 9608} YAVA AN L°L1S'9 8661 ‘L€ isnbny
LeLLeh TY86'Y Loyl 209 6'G¥8't z06e'e 6881°L 8661 "0F 19GUSAON
8'viecl LCLL'S 9'GS| 7°'€69 £'8e8°| y'sev'e 1'202'L 666} ‘82 Aenigad
anjep 194eN
snolep %0 %0 %81 %8 selinb3 aaeulally
' snouep %0 %0 %9 %8S sannb3
snolep %0 %98 %2 %EE Bwodu| paxi4
snouep %00+ %k %0 %+ sjus|eAnbs yseo
uoIeo0||y 19SSY
snouep - XX XXX XXX |edioulid 0 ymols
snouep - XX XXX XXX aWo9U| JO Ymoly
snolep XXX XX XX XX jediouid jo Aisyes
snouep X XX X XX awoou|
snouep XXX XX X X Aupinbin
seAnoslqo
sieah 0g-0 ] sAep 021-0 'sIh Gg-| siesh 0g-S sieah 0g-G
Buo-uoys uous 181u|Aloys BuoT Buo UOZIIOH Wi}
piiln € K
|elol |e1o01 spun4 ajeiedss spun4 pajood 4nd
spung |Iv spund ‘1N dnd
A 5% .
2 s T P e oS Y
juswabeuey) Jopun slossy s Py Lty 7T Y
rgl S s ﬂ\\i&\v\\!\s\ el <
7 o o Upyriy g G 7D yeHe 17



L

e VZ T d Ty 7 Frmes Y T

ANYJdWOD LNIWIODYNYW LNIWLSIAN]

it st B PV \w\wwxa SYX3L 40 ALISEIAINA IHL £110668/s3unEy/0WHN
\v U; « HW, n m NI ‘uﬂ .\..ba\n YaJL 75 i
L 185 7269 CIRE8LT TVLOL
3'8¢ G 8'8S ODOWILA A9 @HDVNVYIN-WHLSAS '.L "[]
2 S'L L AN, DR HEE O
L6es ¢'8¢ 900k R OINO SEH ALY @i INEL )
1'601 O 8201 QINGOINYNVSED S HEL "]
6vSI 99 9°8¢CI NO LSRN OESD "SVTHEL "1
0961 ['C6. 6°¢0I NIOL SEA TVD €A ()
T LSY €Lk 6°60¢ NIdLSHMHLNOS 'L N1
'S 8¢ {0 A EATA s 1)
|2 6°1¢C aille GINOJINY. NIESE, *(1
7% Che 60 NISVE NVINIEd "L N
il ol 5 . HITILA SINMO SR "]
¢ o6v [ aulip NVOIJdINVY NVd "L ']
8LC g9l el @SVd dHEL " ()
30V VL FEE S TR A
3097 i A 9.91¢ LTS VAl "1
L LK LS SRl NOEDNT T YR [
& 98T ¢SOl 1, d00 A9 AHOVNVIN-IWHLSAS "L ]
TVLOL aNnAd aNNA WIdHL LNIANOdWNOD
INTHAL HLVIAAINHHLNI
LAOHS /[LIOHS

(SNOI'TTIN $) NOLLALLLSNI INANOdINOD

A4 NOLLISOdINOD - SANNA ONILVIHAdO




Wd 727 DO/OL/V LD 21~ DOMTA/DOT O\ o v oD 4031 v A

,\\\\kNa g/ . \J\Mn \n\ I

g 4, & i\NV\\u v )

i
O

¢ n.\ww 7 O P )
= \n\aw\% “u G Jy) w0 aviRs \%\\A\ sl {\v%\.ﬂw

sjqejreay 10N - |

1°L0€Y 1oNJuN ASUOJN PaLIajald [euonmnsuy snjdaiQ
80 9T - s 9 96 s's 9T £l y'o 'LOE'T pung w3104

‘ ‘ ! , : . . OGO,
(€0 g1 - €9 69 SL 9 81 00 (oD £8€8'T - pun,{ ULI3 L HLIPIULIIULAIOYS
6661 ‘87 AIeniqay 6661 ‘g7 Lieniqay [STEY SIBIX siua g SIVAX Je3 X SUJUOTA| SYIUOIA Yluop (suotjiws ur)
papus syjuopy oM, papug SYIUo XIS UG AR | Ry, oM ], uQ xIg ESALRR uQ INfeA
e o). aueq ol - 6661 ‘87 A1enaga,] papuy spouad 19SSy 13N
1e3 A Jepudie)d Jed A [eosty

6661 ‘8T AYVNYAHTA
AYVININNS IDNVIARIOIYAd
ANNA WYAL LIOHS ANV AN IWNYAL ALVIGANI AN LIOHS




Kuedwo)) [[assny] YULL] ©
(@aLvisR vaLnan-aonod M - . ‘ . nd-annd wiol @
SPOLIa]
SIBOAC SIBAL € SIROA T AL | B:HSO‘E»E:U _—
000
00'S
+ 0001
z
o
=
Lo0ST B
f=1
El
R
L 00°0T
00°5T
F00°0¢
i 00's¢
Jmaeng)
8661 ‘1€ I9qUIdR( ‘Aepsany ], surpuy
Aj193aeng) Ispriquie) -
C D DD D0 O O3, 3 =23



sjessy S}assy 3|qeialewuoN
awoou| paxi4 SN-UoN awoou| paxi4 SN a|qeIeN e\ BAlBUIBYY aAleula)Y
%0L'6-

%00'G- %00°L
%78l
%000
S1essy a|qeiaieN
%08'8 aAnRUIBY
mwmmm< %Y
a|qeISNJrWUON awoou| paxi4 SN
aAlBUIBYY %000
aWooU|
paxi4 SN-UON
%00°0
siexen buibiew3
jeuoneuIau|
%199
sieyIeN padojaasg
[euolieuIalu|
. %¢c8°0 %989
%LE'E sjuaeAnb3 Aynb3

Aunb3 de) |rews USED PUE USED deD pap/ebie

P avniov

Buibiswg jeuoneulaiu|

SEMEI

IVNLOV SA AJIT0d

Nd O 7 AT LHVHO 3id 3 OPEZDAeEan A IdAT IS A X

SENIEI] sjusjeAinby
pado|anaQ [euoneuialu| Aunb3 dep |lews ysep pue yse9 Anb3g dep pap/ebien
%00'G L~
%9€'S- %€0°9- %000}~
%00°G-
Rl _ pods
%280 %00°S
%000}
%00°S}
%989 %00'0C
%00°Se
. %00°G
) %00°G} awoou|
%00°L awoou| paxi4 SN paxi4 SN-UON
slossy a|qelanenN :
onnBUIBYY
%0081
S19SSY
3|geISJBWUON
aAlfeula)Y
%0008
Aunb3

sioye buibiswg —

6661 ‘8¢ AHVNHg3d
NOILVOOT1V 13SSVY

aNNd ALISHIAINN ININVINHId
OJNILN \

%00°€ de) pap/ebieT

[EUOBUISU|
%00°¢Cl %0001 mucm_mow_ﬂﬂm
siaep padojensq o SEn pUB USe
[BUOITBUIBI funb3 deg jewg  UYSEO PUBUSED




ANYIdWOD LNIWIOVYNYW LNIWLSIAN]| 06C¥066/6CH066/P0g/00WIIN

@ : SYX3 1 40 ALISH¥IAINN IHL

0. 0. 10. 10. 00. 00 66 66 86 86 L& L6 96 96 S6 S& V6 Y& €6 €6 U C6 I6 6 06 06
pIg T PIig ST PpIg [ PIg BT PIg B[ PIE BT PIE B[ P BT P B[ P WL PIg B[ pIE B[ P B
L 1 1 ] 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 1 1 L 1 1 &80 -.v

PISLA 9SEUO.N ] s

PISIA OOJIIOJ TIOL
sores/siuaukedorg/se)/sanLmieyl p1dfold
SI[eS/S1uAe o1 /ST[E))/SPLILINIEIA] [BNIDY e

- 600011
- »000CL
- »000°€l
vty 0
e e N /B R T o VR

AAO-NAA ANOT OL dNd SSO'TAUTAIA - 4(1d




/ INd 6€:2 66/02/t SIX"S21NINJ\yNA\0OWNN\WLIBO\SISSN\:N

>

- Jesayeros v 1} < A J TS MSdG d@,
L€ 8°¢ G oL 9’ /
80 7 A & 'y $oIMN XopuJ JJ01S/1NIBIA ASUOIA
CYy Sy CYy Sv v ~ 0%/09 03 % 0ue[eqay
juuwR[ddng duwroduy
(L¢) (8°¢) (6°S) (9°L) (9°8) (moye) snjding swodu]
v\c.ccm 0°09¢ 0°09¢ 0°09C - 0°09¢C QwodUf 8661 189 °seyg
7S9C$ 66ST$ £€9ST$ T9ST$ I¥ST$ vTST$ PIST $ 009C $ [e10L
A} ¢l 7| vl Al A} 6’1 6'¢ 2O
67CII 8901 8001 0°¢6 668 'S8 i C'C8 QUWOdU] PUSPIAI(]
60STS SISIS IHST$ 86SI$ 8C91$ 8S91 ¢ €89l $ 6¢LT $ QuWIOOU] Jsatauf
c00¢ 700¢ £00¢ ¢00¢ 100¢C 000¢ 6661 8661
86/0£/9 JO se pardsloid [endy

INVIDOUd INHINADVNVIN HINOOINI
ANNA ALISTAAIND INANVINTHd



"SOW /A "SOWI/S|X'86SAG6

9TO‘TTL 09T pazifenuuy SWOoU] "SON L
%61 216°T68°T 9ZH'I80°CST  PIS‘8SI‘6h1 auwoouJ Ivjo],
%L € (S8890€°€)  S€9°0S6°86 0TS LSTT0T awroduy paxiy [81o],
..QSSQQN N»mk.n .WN
%011 6CI‘6S6'V €61°SES 61 PIC 6L VY senmbj ejo0L,
%8 €T- (027°999) TSV LLIY 7S9°EP8‘y sanmb7 aAnewIdN |V [BI0L,
a :saynby 2ayVUII]Y
%9°ST SL6°899 9¢8°087°€ 198119 S)odIRIA] PAYSI[qeIsH [BI0L
..ww\.ocwm. QQSSQD Nﬁtbwﬁw:&mﬁ:ﬁ
%BTEL PLEOS6Y STT08E T ISS‘CTHLE 3901 uowwio)) *S'() [eI0L
%¥°9- (TETTIT) VLT TT9T 90S‘TEL'T uonezifejide)) [[ews [BI0],
BT 909°L90°S I1S6°SSLOY SPET69°SE uonezijeyde)) a3xe /PIIA [¢I0L
..u&.u&m. QQESQU .m..b
:sainbsg
QAISSY Apinbr
%6509 899°0VT‘T 86C°T6T‘E 0€9°1S0T :spuappainbg ysv) puv ysv)
IM0I5) IM0ID) 66 SOIA L 86 SO L sse[)) 19SSy
% $ |

NOSIIVAdINOD HINOINI

ANNA ALISTHAINA ININVINIHAd



€8 IV ¥2:8 66/22/7 L£L066 SIX'Ad1EE066\baysed\euopad\paIBYS\SIasN\Y

Ly 961°8LT LT $ wmay e10],
- N\AMV\\%\ C6LGLIOLT  $ (66/1€/€) Sn[eA OI0JI0]
A o 68C°LILT $ STeMBIPUIIA\ SWOOU] I0J MO[] YseD
888799°1S1 $ (86/1/11) =@nJeA O1[0]310d

T ove — :
Sy 919°086°S$ WISy uodnoH)/AL( [BIUSWRIOU] PazIfenuuy/

THRL 10/
& 9EL'8LYS 09+°66L°9T$ 961°SLT LTS wmay e1o,
9€5°805°T$ 8TEIL6S ¥98°6L1°€$ (HNV 01) oy uodno) 10 Al
(008°620°C$) TE1°8T8°STS TEEB6LETS wInoy oud
%TE0 %L LT %8081 wmoy [e10],
%LST %650 %91°C wn)ay uodno) 10 AIQ
%ST 1- WBLTLT %T6'ST WISy 0]
ooﬁouow,ﬁﬂ KDUQH .Hoo< .HM—Z %oﬂoz
+ moh.asm
Xopu] 00S d2'S

66/1€/€ USnoIy 86/1/11
oocmeho,ton_

opeli], uoneznmbg 1o3IeA ASUOIN ININOSTS
ANNA ALISYFAINA INANVINTHd




(@3LvisR) vainan-aonod
SpoLIag

Kuedwo)) [ossny] yuel] @

417-aNnd viol @

SITAA G SIPAA € SIRA T K 1 JauenQ Jueum) i
000

00'S
000t
00°¢L
r 000
r 00°Sc
000
XCIA/UTA 00°S€

dmaen()
8661 ‘T 19quuddd(J ‘Aepsany ], Surpujy
A[193aen() ISpLIquue))
g O OO O —] —

(9% Uy Jo ey




0T

NV 9S:1 L 66/1€/€0 SIX'PUSdo] \822066 \Wiopad\B)didI\PaIDys\sissn\ 1

‘2] ‘SAIRIIOSSY AFPLIGUILY) [2DINOS
‘RisIoatun) are X sapnioxyg (1)

yT/ET 144! 211! ¥a/s Juey .P.D_
lan! 6°CI ¥'C 89 ANSIDAIUN) BIQUIN[OD)
01 a4l LYy L KISIOAIUN) UMOLE]
9¢l [ 911 'L KJISIQATU) UOIROULIJ
Gl ¥el 18 9L 7O AVISIDATU[) “BIUIGIIA
791 16l 701 [ KISIoATUN) AN
8¢l a4t LS 6 JO KJISIOAIU[) "BIUBAIASUU]
71T : LTt 9°¢ <6 7O AJISIOAIU) “UBTIYDIA
Tyl L'LT 001 6 70 KIsIoAIu) “Qwe(] 20N
191 L1 9'¢l () 939[10D Yinounted
0°¢T ¢Cl 1'6 86 KJISIoAIUN) pIOJuRIS
0°¢t el 811 10T JO KJISIDATUN) “191S9YI0Y
vel 6l jan| 1°01 KIISIDATUN) UINSIMYLION
0°¢I #'C1 0°¢t 901 KISIDATU[) [[QUI0D)
8Ll 8°0¢ S'LT 901 ASo[ouyoa], JO AMNSUI S119SNYILSSTIA
el 091 61T 801 Kisioatun surydoy suyof
0°¢l gl 01 I'1T 70 KJISIOATU() “BIUIOJI[RD) UIAYINOS
6%l LT 91 rA N 70 KIISI0ATU) *0FRIIYD
LT 961 0Cl SN KIISIOAIU[) PIBAIEH
I'vl 6'ST [ 91T AIISIOATU[) [IGIOPUBA
[P1 S| Ll 611 Gl
LYl 0°LT (Y +'Tl KIISIOATU[) UOISUIYSBAN
08T L6t 9Ll 9°¢l 70 A1ISIDATUL) “BIUIOJIRD)
6l 781 '€ L1 Kisioatun Arowdg
9tC L'LT 8'6C TLT 939110 [[PUULID

S6/1E/TL-F6/1/1 S6/1E/T1-96/1/1 86/1€/T1-86/1/1 86/1€/T1-86/1/01 AJIsIdAIUN)
SIBX S SIBdX € Iedx | 911N

8661 ‘1€ ._un_,:wooﬁ Papuy SpoL_d
() NOI'TTI4 I$ < SINHINAMOANE ‘SA HONVINJOJTHd 4LT

ATINO dSN TVNIILNI J4Od



sjessy S)osSY 9|qeleBWUON

11

SENNEIN

W €63 S6/0L/7 LHYHD Sid 21X TOZ0A08E8MEN ANTWMARSA N

s1evle| sjuajeainbg

aWoou| paxi4 SN-UON awioou| paxi4 SN a|qeIeN B BAeuIaY aAleuwIBlY Buibiaw3 [euoeulaiu| padojans( [euoneuIsIU| Aunb3 dep |lews ysep pue ysed Auinb3 deg pan/ebien
%00°G -
%LG 0L
%0004
%y L0- %00°G"
%P L0 %580
e \\|\\|f\|d--1|\, . . : \lllll!!\L\l\i|||l\||¥l|4--|llh$8d
%¥8'0 %190 %20 L %Y+ 0 .
%000+
%00°G H
. IVNLOV SA ADIT0d
%EV L
S19SSY
9|qeIS}/BWUON )
aAIRUIBYY o/ An- %00°S
%GL'T %Ly 0L %00°L 7600°S H awoou|
o ° awoou| paxi4 SN 2
sioe Bubsow3 Ry m%_mwwwmz oSy SIqEIOMEN paxi4 SN-UON
[euoITBUISIU] (BLLSHY SANeWwBY
%8Sl )
awoou| paxid SN %008}
. S19SSY
%L9Ch 8|geloxBWUON
syoxleN pedojeasd SATRUIBHY
[euoreusalu] %00°0€
....... (¢}
%98'¥ Aunb3
. aWoou| %00°€ y
%L0"HL den pan/ebie
Aunb3 de9 |rWS paxi4 SN-UON sioxepy buibiswl
Jeuoneuly|
%00°¢H
s)oxie padojened %00°0
%0 %E¥'SE [eUOIRUIAI| %0001 syus[eanb3
sjusjeainb3 Aunb3 ° yseD pUe UseD

yse) pue ysed den pep/ebieT

AvNLov

Aynb3 dep llews

AJI1170d

6661 ‘gc AHVNHE3d
NOILVDOO011V LISSV

dNNnd NH31L DNOT
NI LN




N‘H ANYJdWOD LNIWIODYNYW LNIWLSITAN|
SYX3 L 40 ALISH¥IAINN I HL

(e e i S B

621066/6C¥066/P0J/0dWnN

sosodind paquiosaxd 107 axnje[si3e] arels £q pajerrdordde suonngmsiq ¢
SuUOIININSUL AeIS JAYI0 01 NN SOT$ «
suonmnsul WASAS "L "N L 03 NI 0S7$ «

SpPUNJ JUSWMOPUD Jeredas 7]

uonN)TISUI AIRIOTJOUSq Yoo JO pIeoq SUTUISA0S AQ POIISTUTUIPE

NINSSSS
- (TMHAJ) suonmusuy paje[dy YIesH J10J Spunj JudUBULD
SuONMNSUT WAJSAS "I, '-UOU §
SUOTINITISUT WIASAS "1, "1 9 ¢
uoneonps I9Y3Iy JO suonmnsur pajeral yijeay ol
suonnqmsip (YO "1 ‘N Aq peururro)ap se) soreridordde a1nje[sI3o] 91elS
S1ua39Yy JO pIeog WAISAS ", ) Aq paIsjsTuripe

NIAN00V$ - (THAHJ) uonednpy IdYSIH 10§ punyj Y)[edf] JUdUBUWLId]

\N\i\,&.\sl -

SINAINMOANA HLTVHH OI'TdNd ‘NOLLVISIOH']




€ 1 1066RY/SSunRI/00WNN

-swrerdold ey par[e pue Sursinu UONBONpa IYIIY
0] preog 3uneurpioo)) ‘pg IoYSIH sex9], Aq parerrdordde suonnqrusip
rorondwon) a1e1§ /M 10enU09d 1od TOTIMNSUT ATRIOIJOUS(] © AQ PSIJ)STUTWIPE

NIANOHS - (THNAHAJ) sweisold
I[CIH PRIV pPue suisiny uonednpy JYSIH JI0J punj jususuliog

(fjuod)

SINAINMOANT HL'TVHH JDI'Td0d ‘NOLLVISIOH'1




ANYdWOD LNIW3IDY NYW LNIWLSIAN]|
SYX3IL 40 ALISMIAINAN IHL

€ 110668Y/Suney/odwnn

pJIepue)S J0JSIAU] JUIPNLIJ 0} UOISIIAUO))
(euoour
1snf jou) sjasse Jd WO Sasuadxa JuaunsaAUT Jo Juduiled sazLioyIne

sporrad 1eak-(Q] SuI[[0 J9A0 paaIasaid jou
sjuausSaAUL g d Jo Jamod Surseyoind Jr suonngrisIp [enuue Ul 9SeaIoul ou

(JOg waisAS 1.0 AQ pauruiIalop
SB) SJUSUWISIAUL Jd JO 9NBA 19)IBUWI 9TBIIAR JO 9,/ PIIIX9 JOU ABW

:3do0x9 ATRUOQIOSIP QI8 SUONNQLUSIP
suonnqIusIp JNV pue siuaunsaAur N4 yroq Jo romod Surseyoind urejurew
QW] IOA0 SUONINQLIISIP JO ureans 9[qe1orpaid pue 9[qels /m JNV apraoid
:01 sydurayye Jey) JIouURW B UI pue YO WIASAS "IL'N
AQ PAUIIIISIRP SE UINIAI [€10} WO} 9peW SUOTINALISIP 9q 01 J()V SQUIJOPaI

suonNqLIISK(J paseq WIn}ay [B)0], 03 UOISIIAUO))

NOILLNLLLSNOD

SVXHL OL SINHINANHINV- ANd ‘NOLLVISIOH'T




F))

IU System
UT System (15) | System
Purchase Date: Current 1/1/00
No. of Accounts: 5,000 1

Fund: UT ENDOWMENTPUF
$2.4BN  7.3BN

Neutral % Allocation 30% 15% 5%
Asset Class US Equities 'd Income Non US Fixed Income
Sub-Asset Classes Large/Mid Cap

Neutral $ Allocation $3.7BN 1.6BN $.5BN

utimco/aum
2000rest.xls
Sheett



(MsIy) |1es1101s1H [en1oY

%00°'G¢e %00°0¢ %00°G} %000} %00°G %0070
_ “ _ | 1 %000

%L1 L {MSId} 1enioy ) W
‘%622 Hwney} [enpy __%lS0 v %006 ¢
8661/Le/2t 417 N ASIH %c9’'G ‘ulniay s|lig-L QO
+ %000} =
H3ILNOHAS o
A3aNIVHLSNOD ADIT0d + %00°Sl 3
Q
+ %0002 B
XOpU| Y} MOID 00 d8S %001 m
-]
winjey SI0 sy sso + %00°G¢ m
%989 {MSIH}3a =z

‘%S v {d}3 ., IVINILDO. 1 °,00°0¢

%E€8°0 %05°C
%80°L %05V
% 6L %00°Ct
obuey ysiy obuey uinjey sabuey Ad1j0d 417 01 paulessuo) :aAIn) anjg
: paulessuodun %001 01%0 :dAINY UddIH
i Aynb3 s1eAld 417 8 S@J1PU| 10} SUINISY [BILOISIH [BNRY
d3NIVHLSNOD ADI'Od A101SIH 189701

8661L/ClL O1 8861/
sJanjuol4 juadiyig

remoy Anbyg a1eAL] 4]/T SUIpn[our UImY/STY [BOLI0ISTH IBd X -0




'SIBAA T SB[ ISIIAIU() ISpLIqUUIE))
Y] SNSJIAA IDUBULIOJIIJ d[[}IEN() PUOIAS :IEJ 0S POOS SHMNSIY  »

(s10011(] ‘SurouruL] SUIURZZIA ‘Teiide)) aIMUsA ‘sIN0Ang PaSeIoad]
‘sjnokng Juowaeury ‘Kinbyg reAld) Anby 9[qRIONIRJA-UON QATIBUIAY o

([ennaN 193IBIA ‘spun,j 93paH ‘93enIqIy 1UoAYH ‘a3enqry
198 10J “sa1891eNS WINJY AN[0SqY) SoNInby S[qeIoyIeIA SFANRUIAY o

:SUOTIBOO[[Y 19SSV QATIRUIY Papung —

(ODNIJ) uSwaSeURIA
QWOOU] PAXI] [BUINXF 0} JUSWAZBURIA] SWOOU] PIXT] [BUINU] PILDAUCD —

UOTJBOO[[Y QWIOdU] PIXI S)-UON papund -
*$S990.1d 3y} UI AJISIIAIP
Suiseatoul ‘o1joJ1a04 A91[0J 9Y) SPIEM0) A[[EJUIURIIUI UONBIO[[Y
emoV ALT Y} Sursowr s1eak ¢ jsed oY) Juads seq QDINLLN
*SIBIA € SuI[Ie) 9Y) J0J ISIIAIU[) ASPLIqUIE)) I} JO UINJII UBIPIW
) 9A0(E SUINJII PIIBIIUIS sey o1[0J)10J AdI0od [BIMIN JLTOYL -

UONBIO[[V 19SSV




"PAIIPISUOD Aq P[NOYS OI[0J110]

£21[0J 9Y) UI paurejuod sdgue. SSe[d J3sse 3Y) 0} syudunsnipe IoUuljy
-a[joad puny YSII J9MO]

‘UINjaI JYSIY € I0J MO[[e 0} Jueipen() }S9OMYIION 3Y) 0jul I3Yy)inj
19s Lyrunjroddo 17T 9Y) dA0U AJUI)SISUOD 0 ST Ao Y,

"S9SSBIO J9sse 9[dnnui 9y} WOoIJ PIJoNnnNsuod
2q ued Je1)) sorjopod Jo suoneurquiod a[qissod ) [y = 198 Arumioddg  —

19s Aymumyaoddo
renuajod 3y} Jo A)[Iqe[IeAR SUIRIISUOD UONEIO[[V JISSY JUR.LIN)

*3SJIAIU[) JUSWMOPUH Y} SNSIIA IANIdwIod urewax o) pajepdn
pUE PIJBN[EAd 3( 0} SPIU UONBIO[[Y 19SSV OI[0J1I0J AdT[0d

(paNuUnuod) UoNeIO[[Y 19SSV




%5001 SIASSY TVIOL
S TE%tL %%0¢ AIALOONT THIXTT TWILOL
paspayupy
IgOM S 17UON BowoTeg %4940 245 TEUORRTIaIU]
275258y SIYIOI Weuya] 9GT- s 1 2651 (omsaweod 'S N
SUECoU] PR
04 LB04LR9 508 SATIINOHA TWIOL
%CE-94G 946 S1955% SANBWIAY [E10],
LI 845G TG 2481 [pmbi]arqeIaxrey-uo p]
% + Sg-L #2016 950 1 -%60 Uhi [pmbrTlarqeiarepq
[s19ss%y]saumbg saneuIayy
%%08-%4CE 9GS ${a015 BOWHO)) (210,
2405245 %G1 Tejol-gns
891, "SI SUEIWT-TD ST 2501 - %40 0L S1aNTE SuULSIaWIT
(S 1-%3) ppo g, sauenayy T %0Z %G 2471 s1aMTeIA] Paysqelsy
”muﬂoon—m Qogoo HQO«HNED“GH
24GG- %G 1 %0 Tejol-gns
EIPUT QOO Tassyg 9951948 2401 s3ja01g uoHeziEnde ) Tewg
Xapu] 00G dFS 9602401 2408 s3001g uomezende) aSIe PPl
13038 VOUMUC) 'S 1
sagmbg
ploty say M-I 4ep 1§ 260 6-%0°0 %940 syuapeamby pue Uyse)
EIEEI LT E:C Texna iy
muggo,w.um&”

SHAILDWUCIO HONVINIOITdd nHZAw ‘STONVIA

‘NOLLISOd TVALAAN SISRI ANV NRIALTI FALDAIXA ‘NOILVOOTIV LASSY DIJIDAdS

orfopiod Aotod 411




(Mis1d) paroadx3 abpuque)d

%0091 %00 ¥} %00°CL %000F %008 %009 %00¥ %00¢ %000

| | ! | | |

|

_ T T T T _ =
__Im<o=

SNOILV 1O33dX3 39didgiNvO ANV
S3SSV1O 13SSV 417 ONISN
13S ALINN1HOddO 0OI704.140d
SNOILVOOT1V 13SSV TvN.LIV 866L/LE/CL
‘SIN3IINMOANI A LISH3AINN

T

%SC v

T o\om_.N.m

- %Scvi

(NHN13Y) peroadx3 abpuque)




14.25%

9.26% T+

Cambridge Expected (RETURN)

4.25%

1
Iniversity

rersity
University

Iniversity*

1e, University of
h College
University

ern University

t University
Jniversity of
University of
iversity

ICY

UAL

niversity

n University

kins University**
nia, University of
, University of

1%
ed 105.6%

0.00%

2.00%

California, University of
setts Institute of Technology



...........................
....................

(2%01)
[eide)
QINMUIA

SIUSUISOAUL-0))

(%S0) W1

%81 AL'T %S1 And
OT[OJIO] S[qRISIBIN-UON] - SIIBIN JeALI]

ADULVALS INHINLSHANI OISV







The University of Texas
Investment Management Company

Alternative Equities - Nonmarketable Program

**Notes Regarding Calculation of Investment Returns**

Calculation of Returns

Each private market investment return shown in the schedule above is the internal rate of return
(IRR) of all cash flows related to the investment, calculated in accordance with the method cited in
AIMR Performance Presentation Standards Handbook, p. 66 (Association for Investment
Management and Research, 2" Edition, 1997).

Cash flows for this purpose are of three types: capital contributed to the investment; capital
distributed by the investment; and, for unrealized investments, the end of period value.

The first type of cash flow, capital contributed to the investment, is self-explanatory because all
capital contributions are made in cash.

The second type of cash flow is equally straightforward when the investment distributes cash. In-
kind distributions, on the other hand, are distributions of securities, not cash. The cash flow amount
of a distribution of securities is equal to the market value of the securities as of the date of the
distribution'.

The method of determining the third type of cash flow for performance measurement purposes,
end of period value, depends upon whether the investment is a fund investment or a direct co-
investment. For a fund investment, the value is the end of period capital account. A direct co-
investment is valued at market value, if it is publicly traded; otherwise, a direct co-investment has
the value implied by the last financing round at which the price was set by a material third-party
participant, with a 20% discount for illiquidity.

The internal rate of return (IRR) is the discount rate () at which the net present values of all three
types of cash flows from an investment sum to zero:

n —(ic)
2
0= CF (1 + 2]
i=0

After solving this equation iteratively to find an r that reduces the present value of the net stream of
cash flows from the investment to zero, the result is annualized to produce the IRR reported by
UTIMCO:

IRR = (1+7r) —1

! The UTIMCO staff places in-kind distributions into an internally managed portfolio of such securities, using the value at the
distribution date as the cost of the investment. Performance after the distribution date is attributable to the UTIMCO statt, not the
distributing investment.

210 West Sixth Street, Second Floor Austin, Texas 78701 Voice 512-499-4308 Fax 512-499-4365



Timing of Returns’

During the early years of a typical private investment partnership, the investor can expect negative
returns and cash flows. Returns are negative because cash is being called to invest in portfolio
companies and to pay the general partner’s management fees. Because initial investments are
carried at cost, early-year returns are negative primarily because of the expense of the management
fees and also because of the occasional decision to write off an investment early in the fund’s
investment cycle.

This pattern, illustrated by the solid line in Figure | below, is called the “J-curve phenomenon.”
The beginning of the J represents negative returns in the first two years. In year 3, however, returns
begin to improve as some investments are written up in value. Break-even typically occurs around
the fourth or fifth year of the investment in the fund. After year 5, liquidity events begin to occur as
the general partner starts to execute exit strategies for the portfolio holdings. At this time, the
fund’s returns and positive cash flows are being realized.

Figure 1. The J-Curve Phenomenon

20 =
A
[ FE . /

g 10 et e

- .t

] L

e

e o

= L ,

R

ﬁ !"

[+ - p

= o

g (3 oo s e s s N/ e e o 0 00 e e

Y

= iy

New x/

-5 b yd
~10 [ I | |
Q 2 4 6 <3 10

Year

2 This section is adapted trom “Structuring a Venture Capital Portfolio: An Investor’s Perspective,” Heary G. Robin, CFA, p. 14
(AIMR Readings in Venture Capital, 1997). Mr. Robin’s article was itself an adaptation of a speech to the February 15, 1996 AIMR
Conference on Venture Capital in San Francisco.




It is important to note that the J-curve phenomenon applies to entire vintage years, as well as to
individual private investments. Vintage years group all private investments from a particular fiscal
year into a single investment, which possesses the same cash flow and valuation characteristics as a
single investment. Thus, vintage year 1997 is in its second year in 1999 and could therefore be
expected to exhibit negative returns, while vintage year 1992 is in its seventh year and can
therefore be expected to feature positive returns.




INd 8€:266/02/r822066 4022I1aang\aleAlud\paIByS\SIasn\:

%1°8 (paurquiod) ased 10ssy AL 1/ANd %
879°6 (suorpuu §) ased 19ssy 4L 1/dNd
oS OT[0J110d JO 2nfe A
CHlEe [eade)) paInquysIpu)
(Terdy) Suren) PozZIfeay] JoN/QWOdU]f
(6'11¢) [eade) jo wnay
9°960°1 UMOPUMEBI(]
00 an[e A Juruuidog
ede)) pajsoauy
1SS Qoueeq umelpu) Sulpuyg
(9°960°1) umopumel(J
a2 7 L0S6°1 PoPPV
Eghr T 2 0°0 ooueeg Sutuuisoyg
[ende) panruuao))
66/8T/T 9 (SNOITTIN $)
uondadug

NVIDOUd HTIVILIMIVIANON
SHILINOA AALLVNIALTV

e b [1— g2/ =7

> el \\.\_.\.;\1\, 7 “\uh\\S\R\ 2 v\\\\



INd 8€:2 66/02/F | HBUD UBUI8ZZ066 SIX 22Iqana\e1enld\paleys\sissn\y

Jjlewyousg %L1 @ dd1 @

- 2861

"PAIIWWOD |elideo 0} SpuUOdsaliod 8|alId JO 8ZIS

- €861
- 7861
- G861
- 9861
- 861
- 8861
- 6861
- 0661
- 1661
- C661
- €661
- 1661

I UUUG |

o

. WELA DR

%80L %VL

PaIS8AULSL0 1

6661 ‘82 Aenigad jo sy
(weiboud Aq Y| pazijenuuy %.8°91)

Jea A |eoasi4 abejuip Aq HY| pazijenuuy
wesbo.ld ajqelaytewiuop - saninbg aaneuially

%0¢-
%0k-
%0
%01
%0¢
%0€
%0t

%05

ddl




INd 6€:2 66/02/¥ 22190ng \eJeAld\PBIBYS\SIOSN\:-

$097 Juaweseurw Jo JuewAed Aeredss parelolp Juawearse diysiomred,

9%09°9T L'SS$ 1'791$ Sv9% TY9% oL,
9%0L'€E T$ +'9£$ SII$ 11$ dT ‘s1auIed DS 6861 L
%08'S- ¥ 1$ 1'$ 9t 9t$ "d"1 111 0DDSO 6861 9
9%0t'€€ PEes - 819 00z$ 00z$ "d1 ‘11 PUn UBROLAWY YHON 6861 S
%0T 6T S61$ 81E$ 011$ 011$ Auedwo) vonelodxg ploYMoN 6861 ¥
%BOt'T 0§ 9§ S'$ S'$ U] “TRDAYT] 6861 €
%02°0T 0% GLIS LS 0L *ou] ‘uonesodio) [PIOUTUL] AWOH 79 WIL,] 6861 T
%0t'8 T1$ SIS 6'6$ 001$ 11 duudkay) 6861 1
%088 9% LIES PT$ vTe =o],

%099 ¥'$ T8 0¢$ 0¢$ "d'T ‘PUNL] AIMIUGA SPUBIPOOA AU, 8861 S
%0101 T$ ¥SI$ 001$ 001$ "d1 ‘11 s1PulIRd BSoIRIeS 8861 t
%08°6S- 0% I'$ SI$ SI$ *0U] ‘SPO0,] JRISSUTUION 8861 €
%0E ¥ 0'$ 8¢S 0T$ 0T$ s, ou] ‘sSuIpjoy [ende) pAord 8861 T
%01ST 0% 8% 6'LS$ 6L$ ueo'] 23pug ouf ‘sSurpjoy rende) pAoLd 8361 1
L\ adl €01% 9°L5$ LTS S6T$ [?10L

%0€°6T 6% 0'8¢$ 9'6$ 001$ ‘T s1euTRd AIRSUIM L8GI S
%0S°€ 0% 8¢S Tes 0°S$ [13Sn1], Xdj018) AL L861 ¥
%H0E°E L$ [Sfey 0°S$ 0S$ I1 pun,j S1uawaoe|d [erads MO L861 €
%091~ 0% 9¢$ TS Tr$ *d10D) SUIPIOH 20UTINSU] SIOISAAU] L861 T
%BOT'L 8 19$ 1'6$ [ "PIT ‘s10ulIRd QUUAKAYD) L8611
%08'8¢ 0% 8°T$ 6'$ 6'$ pun,j 1SI1,] NASULTLURN €861 1

AT anjeA pauwIn}ay] JIEIREANIY | ar_oEu_..:EcU dWeN e “ON
Suureway [eaoaddy

6661 ‘8T Areniqaq JO SV $6-¢861 1851
ATAVLIIIVIANON - SHILINOHA AALLVNYALTV
JHALIAAVN



-

INd 6€:2 66/02/F 291aang \eJeAld\PBIBYS\SISSN\:H

wageuew Jo juawAed aeredas pajeIdIp JUAWALITE aE&»EéE

%06'1¢ 0% 0Es 0c$ 0¢ $)201S pANQUISI( ¥661 1
%06'1T- 0% 0 I'$ 0$ SYO0IS pANqIsI(] €601 1
%HOT'LT TSI$ 1'LS$ 0'IF$ 0°0v$ [ L LA

BOCT Y1 0v$ S'6% 6'8% 001$ pun.j YIMoID) SeXa, UL 661 ¥
%0S°S1 8'es STIS '6$ 001$ "d1 ‘11 s30ued ende)) UeWpaLL] % UeW]RH 601 ¢
%OL 89~ 0% 6'C$ 0'¢s 0% $j001S pANQUISI T661 T
%0881 LS [AdxY 0'0c$ 0'0c$ "d"T ‘TIT SAIRIO0SSY UMOID) 661 1
B08'TE (32 S°€8% ' 0E$ (443 ®0],

%0861 s 1'61% I'11$ '01$ 1 pung Ambi 0661 Lommm 1601 ¥
BO6'TI So1$ 001$ S A ocIs 'd71 'smIed SJ0 1661 €
»OT 9T 0'$ £'eTs 0°¢s 1'S$ "ou ‘reuoneuwINUI JNAE 1661 T
BOT'TS 0% '1eg 0es 0¢s "ou] ‘reuoneuIaul INA Y 1661 1
9%00°01 TTH LEPT$ 8°901$ €'801$ [e0],

%01 9'% 6'C$ 6'C$ 0'c$ “dT 11 PAIWILT SOTMUAA Pl 0661 ¥1
BOT'L £'$ £'es ¥'C$ 7'es$ pun.j AIMIUIA SPUBIPOOA Y], 0661 €1
BOL1S- 0'$ 6'% 0°¢$ 0°s$ "ou] “Jamndwo)) dwiig 0661 C1
$09°S I'1$ 6'8% 0'8% 0'8% "d"1 11 seamua A erydiaperid 0661 T1
%00°LT [ S 9'9¢$ 0S1$ 0°S1$ "d" 'TII SIQUMTJ 2IMUOA IO[RYIUdTION 0661 0T
%09°1 0% 6'CTS 9CY 9'Cs$ d10D) SUIPJOH 9URINSU] SIOISAAU] 0661 6
7%00°001~ 0% 918 911$ L'11$ JIOMIAN 0518 [RUONTUINU] 0661 8
»OT 91 9'¢Y 0118 9% 998 "ou] ‘Auedwo)) [10 uoISPIOD 0661 L
%00°L 0'$ L'Te$ LIS TLI$ ‘d1 ‘s1oumaed Amby a1eAld enoarg 0661 9
%0T 0~ [ S LS LS UOIAYY) - UROT AFpU 1] AUUALIYD 0661 S
BOL 11 0$ LTS 9Cs 9'T$ U0 8pUY 1] UUAD 0661 ¥
BOLTI 678 061$ LTIS 0°S1$ 111 2uukay) 0661 €
%0E9T 0'$ S01$ Ses [SEY *ou] “dnoID) SUOEdUNWIWIOY) YOIV 0661 €
BOTTI1 'S c0cs 918 0¢Is$ 1 °pung rende)) s1omred [eSNpU] UrdLIWY 0661 1

AAT ENT LN pauan)ay  PIIseAU]  JuduUIWwWo) e “ON
Fupurewdyy [eaoaddy

(")u0d) 6661 ‘8T ATeniqaq JO SV $6-€861 [8SL]
ATV LIMIVIANON - SHILINOA AALLVNYALTV

JHLIAdNVNQ



INd BE:2 66/02/7 2214aNE \S1eALId\PAIBYS\SIOSM\:

PHOSTI I'I61% €19% 6°S0T$ 0°162%

LOS O €08 8LS LS 0°¢Is "1 SIUIT MUSUIM S6/ST/E 81
BHOTTC 3FES 0s cFes 00¢s " 11 SJeuIR SUONRIIUNUIWOD) VSA S6/6/8 Ll
L0t 1 L'FS 0'1s 968 09% "dT 111 PUn 2AMUA A XISST/SPURIPOOAN UL +6/S1/6 91
%00 s €8 L'FS 0018 11 pun.] NAOID) SBXAL, UL S6/L/L Cl
1H09°L C8s S LS 001% [1] WWAWUIELIANUF 7 "OJU] J0] SAITO[OUYAL, S6/L/L !
0T 1 (SRR 'S C8IS 0°STs 1 HIADS So/11/E £l
LOF'S ceIs TS 8°0T$ 0°¢cs "dT 1 seuTd R F6/ST/11 Cl
»HOF'el FEIs L'8S 7818 0°cTs ‘d7T ‘puny autuRZZAIN INd S6/L/L 11
5089~ £'es 0's 8¢S 0 ¢CIs "1 11 punj ueduRWY PION S6/11/¢ 01
50191 CoIs £'es erIs 0 €IS "d1 T AL S1ULR AMUAA JR[RIUISION S6/11/S 6
108’1 6°CIS 0'es CSIS 0'scs "d1 11 pun AUIUTZZAIA €3 S6/8/C S
1060 668 098 6'8% 00 "J°T *samiuap A3010uydA L UONTWION] $6/6/8 L
HOSTE- s I'es ces 0$ NOO1S panqunsic, 9
10167 0% L91S 0°0cs$ """ A PUN 201y 7 JAIGn( “UOIARD S6/+T/T S
BHOTET OFIS 69% 1918 0°scs "d°7 "s1oureg autuezzaj dioant) C6/FT/T ¥
ORI LS £% €98 001$ "1 1 s3euneq A1) C6/1/¢ £
1S 9C €88 6'S 0°cs 0°¢s ‘I AL SAIMUAA UNSNY £6/1/11 T
H09°6- TS Fes 068 00cs *d’ *pun, durut] awi0dio) ursy S6/L/L 1

WAL aneA pauINdy  PAIseAu]  JUBUNIWIWOD) dweN e ‘0N
Suruewayy [eaoaddy

6661 ‘8T ATeniqaq JO SV S661 18251
ATIVILIIIVIANON - SHLLINOA HJAILVNIALTY
dALIANAVNQ



Nd 6€:2 66/02/v go1aang \eleAud\paieys\siosn\:y

BOFTI LLITS S'SLY 9°80Z% T'88C%

»HO6T 0'12$ (SR cees 0°0S$ pung 9661 AAA 96/0¢/8 €l
%H0E 1~ L91$ 0'$ 0LIS 0°ST$ pun,] an[eA snoo,] - [1] dnoin uodeag 96/01/9 [
BOC'L 7018 'S £'6$ 0er$ "d1 11 oropog Aimbg pue . 96/L1/+ IT
9%b0OT ST 9CI$ SRR €81% 002$ *d] ‘sIoUMRd 7 UIIS SHITAM 96/8/C 0r1
FZUNS STIS £es CSIS 0°0c$ 11 pun, 100ANg $AILI0SSY POOMIUAIY 96/8/T 6
»06'S- (SES 0'$ 6'S$ 0°01$ 'd"1 ‘s1omIed [LIIPIN dNURNY 96/8/C 8
5099 0'$ 0cs 0cs 0cs JOOY A[ORUUL] SEXI, ISR MOLIY ASI2UT 96/31/1 L
BOT'EY I'S1$ 9°0cs SPCS S0es 11 0D % uosueH ASnod 96/81/1 9
BOL'ST 8°8¢CS 198 S'LTS 00¢$ "d"7 ‘s1eunreq Kby ueadomyg DAD 96/81/1 S
%0011 6'Ces 0F$ 6'1CS L'TTS *d 7] ‘sIouIRd WWAUNSAAUT N 1€ 96/81/1 14
BOL9 9'11$ 0'$ S01$ 0SIS J7T “TII sredrway)) % srenaiey A1retoadg puesiedwy S6/0¢/11 €
%H0O] - €018 0$ ¥II$ 0°0C$ *d"T ‘11 puny] dnoip) 2210D S6/€1/01 4
BOS S¥ 0'$ 0'¢cs 9'1T$ 0$ 201§ pANGISI I

AAT aneA pauIn}dy  PaJsAAuU]  judunIuuIo)) sweN Aaeq ‘ON
Sulureway [eaoaddy

6661 ‘ST ATeniqaq JO SV 9661 18251
ATIVILISTIVINNON - SHLLINOHA AALLVNYALTV
JHLIAAVNA



INd 6€:2 66/02/v zo1adng \e1eAld\paIBYS\SIBSN\:H

%0t L L'ESTS 8PS SH8I$ 0°0€€$
%O +6 0$ 9'6T$ 09¢$ 0% 3001 PANQUISIC
BOL'TE OLI$ 0% 001$ 001$ s1aY01g BIPIOOY L6/9/8 ral
%000 ¥81$ Tes 9'1¢$ 00S$ 111 pun] [ende) AS1aug depud L6/91/L 11
%06°€ 9°6$ 6't$ 001$ 001$ s1sa101u] AIRPUOAS PUBM LG6/ST/O 01
%501°9- 9TIS I'$ LET$ 00T$ SIoURJ IMUIA WSLJ L6/E/9 6
%BOSET 9LS 0% 8°9% 00c$ 1A dWud L6/€/9 8
%010 OLIS T$ TLIS 00r$ 11 s1ouueq Aimbg DNI L6/ 1/ L
%088 F01$ 0% 011$ 0'0r$ 111 s1oued MLSY LO/ET/E 9
%0t 0 6'61$ 0% 00c$ 00¢$ 11 pun,j ueadomd 1g L6/€1/€ S
»BO11L- 91$ 0% 1'¢$ 00rs$ SIQUIIR QI00IAY L6/LT/T ¥
%06'€T 9°6% S1$ 06$ 0S1$ A SRIMUIA UnSNY 96/07/¢1 €
%OEL ceT$ 0% 06c$ 00r$ 11 pung Ambg NS 96/02/TT 4
%Ot €T So1$ €T$ T11$ 0°SI$ [1 OPUSISAID 96/+7¢/01 1
AT INjeA —5:.__.:0% —vvumv}:- u:oEzEEOU vENZ e ON
Surureway| [eaoaddy

6661 ‘ST ATeniqaq JO SV L661 [8dSL
ATAVLITIVINNON - SHLLINOA AALLVNYALTV
dHLIAAVNQ



INd 6€:2 66/02/¥ 2919ang \SJeALd\PBIBYS\SIOSN\:H

HOT'S" AL ¥ Ir$ TILIS 0PTS$

BOL'S €T T'17$ £Tr$ 0% J001S PAINQUISI 91
%09°LT- 1'6$ 0% 96 00s$ 11 S19UMIRd %9 UIAIS SIMM 86/0T/8 g1
%0t L TS 0% STIS 0°5T$ [I SIoUIRJ QUTURZZA 1A[PIOS JRISNION 86/0T/8 ¥1
%000 L'$ 0% L$ 0SLS s10159AU] ANnby UdRAID 86/T/L ¢l
%09°1¢- 9¢s 0'$ 8¢S 0°5T$ A SIOULIRJ MU I[RYIUASION 86/T/L 4!
%000 T9% 0% 9% 00¢$ [ SIOULIRJ SONLNJAG URILAWY 86/TT/S 1
%01+ 9 '$ 91I$ 0sT$ ‘A°d AeqyRO S6/ET/Y 01
%000 g 0% 819 00c$ 11 sesudiouyg swid 86/£T/¥ 6
%000 0 0% 0sc$ 0°5T$ SIOUIEJ SUONEITUNWWOD) YUI'LINU] 86/€T/F 8
%OETI- S 0$ 1'6$ 0°scs II SUMUIA AS0JOUYIR], UONCWIONU] 86/ST/T VA
2%08°LT- id 0% +'S$ 00F$ dT AT DS L6/TT/TT 9
%0S°€1- ¢ 0 CEI$ 0veS I SIQUIRJ JUSWISAAUT () I L6/TT/T] S
%0S°¢1- L 0% 0CI$ 00r$ pun,| SUOHRIDUNWWOD) JANed L6/ST/T1 ¥
%0T' L9- 8 0% L't$ 00r$ pun,j SIAUIRJ XIUAOYJ/SSAUIAAU] L6/ST/TT ¢
%0E 6 ") 0% 911$ 00¢$ 11 puny Auuaq wadieH L6/0€/01 é
%00°0 9'¢$ 0$ 9'¢$ 0'0r$ 111 vosuey Agsnod L6/S1/6 1

UAT EIU LN ﬁu:.:..uvvm Paaisaaug ur_vE:EEcU EL LGN e “ON
Suiureway [eaoaddy

6661 ‘8T ATeniqa JO SV 8661 [8SLA
ATAVLIAVINNON - SHLLINOA AALLVNIHALTV
JHLIANAVN



INd 6€:2 66/02/F 291qang \eJenlid\DBIBYS\SISSN\:H

»OE0F ST 6°'L$ 76T% 0°81Z$

2%00°S69 I'cs 6'LS [SEN 0% JoOIS paINQmISIQ 8
%050 0'8% 0$ 0'8$ 0'8% *d10D “3018RIR], 86G/E€T/TT L
26000 0¢s 0¢ 0¢s 0°sc$ 11 s1ued VAH 86/01/CT 9
%5000 LTS 0's L'1$ 0°0cs ‘dT IA SOIUAA UnNsny 86/¢¢/01 S
%000 6'SS 0'$ 6'S$ 0°¢S$ "dT ‘TI1 OpuRdsAI) 86/0CT/8 14
%00 CTH I'1$ 0% €18 0°¢T$ "dT T1 sIouMed 2IMUIA WISHJ 86/0T/8 €
BOL0S- L'$ 0% 8¢ 0'0t$ *d’T ‘111 s31dWIed suonedunuwwo) V¥SA 86/0¢/8 4
%00°0 0% 0% 0s 0°CSLS ‘d'T ‘II1 Aimbg a1eAnq SAIRI0SSY poomiualg 86/0¢/8 1

WAL anjep pauUIN}dy  PAISAAU]  JUdWIWUIO)) dweN aeq *ON
Suureway [eaoaddy

6661 ‘8T ATeniqaq JO SV 6661 [8ISLA
ATIVILIIIVIANON - SHLLINOA AALLVNIALTV
dALIdAVNQ







Sovtmz AL ‘101021L(] SUISRURIA
11 ‘SuoT I unsny

WeRIS0IJ JUUWISIAUT-0)) 1031 Y.L



ol

sdiystouired J0J X Q' SNSIOA —

X €7 :AQuou sauw) [[BIdAQ

sdiyszouyred 10J 96° L] SNSIOA —

%Y L1 918D O1 J ] orjopod [[e19AQ
oI ['£61$ Surfeio sure3 g
UOI[[IW 9'GT$ SUILIO) SISSO] €

QATIOR [[1IS {7 “UOT[[IW

L'6L$ SUI[e10] SJUSUIISIAUIL [ ] JO O1[0J110d

(9661 91 01 €861)
OI1[0J110J JUWISIAUT-0))

JUAWIQSRURIA 19SSV JO 01110




m (AIepu02as 3IngIep )
ureS uor[Iw ¢§ e paepmbiy Afjenaed |

(e1pI00Y) ODINLLN 01 12U uonen[eA Ul 9SeaIoUl
uor[Iw /¢ ur 3unnsar ‘uonisod p[os I01S9AUI-0)) —

(UIIoI]) YT %01 IUUWISIAUT UOT[IU
GZ$ UO ured uol[[iw 7§ J0J JUQUIAAITe 9[es PAUTIS —

dn-yIew 10] 90UAPIAD 9ATIOAQO AR T
91ep 0] PAISIAUL UOI[[IW §°6LS —
UOoI[IW ¢()T$ SUuI[e10) STUSUNTWUWOD § e

(1U3sa1d 01 9661 “TBIN)
OI[OJII0] TUAUNSIAUT-0D) ODINLLN




b 1509 1® Y(JH pue
66/SC/C AN[eA se JulrTrau] 10j doud safes surs) (1)

sdiyszoured 10J X £6°() SNSIOA —
X '] :AQuouw SQWI) [[BIQAQ) e

sdiystouyred 10J 94¢€°¢- SNSIOA —
(WD TY9 9661 UIIEIN SOUIS H Y] [[BIPAQ o
1S0J 18 PALIIBD 7 o

(VCH) 1809 X 97 01 X €' $18933ns o3ues 9L —
SUOISSNISIP OJJ UT | o

("1U09)
OI10J110d Juaun)SaAUI-0) ODIANILL(]




%HE 91 %1 €1 WBT € ‘b a11d %

BIET . %BSO'1 %9C°0 | AL'1/dNd %

7'8CIS Ce0rs YA SN[BA

paurquopn OJILN VO

6661 8T "2 e
OTJOJ1I0J JUUWISIAUI-0)) [[BIDAQ



sdiysuone[al pying 0l SANIAIOR POppe-an[eA —

JUUWISOAUL punyj 03 ounlpy —

onstunyroddQ —
uonejuawdwy e

(woyl Yirm 91odwod gou) Sqo) I1SISSY —

asnIadxa jjels aaoxdwy —

(sosuadxa JoMOT) UISIeW A JB SUINIAI ASeAIOU] —
Jreuoney e

A3eNS JUAUNSIAUI-00) ODINLLN



11oddns Surrojiuowr 3ur03UO
“a0ddns 20udSI[Ip 9Np 9ATIOR PIPIAOI] e

) PUBAA pU®
SSOUIDAUT ‘DN UMM TUIOOW SAIIAIIS ASIoU —

03S1D) UM s3uneaul pue py/JDA/ODNLLN —
SSULIAYIBS JD) QANIJ[AS P[OH e

NI0MIU JO) WOolj / —
YI0MIU JJBIS WO )¢ —

SJD) 01 SUONOBSURT) /¢ PALIAJOY o

SINIANOY PIPPY-oNn[eA



TVIINAAIANOD X THOIH - Auedwod driqnd (1)

(uotqrrur 0TS - (1 RUHEIN
OOJLI],) QOUSI[IP anp JO SIS B[ UL |

oty
9'6L$ JO 86/0€/1 1 USNOIY) JUSUNSIAUL [BIO], —
uor[[Iw ('€ 1$ JO JUAUIIWWOD [BIO], —

Q PIsSO[o pue paAroidde ¢/ paIuasAld e
Q1 UO QOUQTI[IP anp dATURISANS e
sonTun1I0ddo JuUaUW)SIAUI-09 QG e

MOTIU]
[Ba(] JUAUISIAUT-0D) ODNILN




Q3®BI10]1S IoIn)ovJnueRW IIq [[LI( —

eiep A)suop YSIH - (dnoio 1¢)
(AL]) I0ISBIQL, JuLmorJnueA [QIe A

sured yonn Ainp AaeoH — 9FeIoY0I1q 2dUBINSU] —
(poomiudig) (srounred
SSUIP[OH Yoni], A1) PUBAA ) BIPIOOY

SWIIISAS 9[qrO UBQINXd — 1SQIAUI ATBPUOIIS —
(Anbg axrysdwey) (s1ouled pue)
SUOTIBOTUNUIWO)) S1SQIAIUT AIepUO0IAS
NUITIIUT o 3mgiep\ D4S

SJUUWIISAAUT-0D) ODINLLN




renuaod opisdn 9ary suonisod [BIAIS —
Arreonsuniroddo sur([es —
SIUQWIUIO)) o
%6'€ Y]
UOI[[TW §'G§ :oN[BA SUTUTRWY
UOI[[IW §"}$ :9Jep O} PAZI[EY
UOT[[IW ()] $ POISAAU] e
L661 ‘AInf Paso[) e

$1SQINU] AIRPUO0IAS 3INgIep\ DS




[l

Q6/6 Ul dn-yIeWw 95 ()/ 18 p[Os suonisod I0ISIAUI-0)) —

u00I0))
SHTIANI YA SUOISSNOSIp 9es 3uroduo ‘uefd uQ —

SIUQWIUIO))

D1y -ddl

UOI[[IW ()'L]$ :oN[eA SUTUTRIIY

-0$- :OIEP 01 PAZI[EAY
UOT[[TW O PRISAAU]
1661 ‘Toqualdag paso[d
‘OU] RIPIOOY




uerd voriw £§ 'sA VALIFH 66 A UOI[IW 9§ ISH —
syuowaAoxduwir feuonerado JuedJIUSIS SUIYRIA —

SJUQUIUIO))

V/N -ddl

(1S00) UOI[IW ' [ [§ :oN[BA SUIUTRWIY

uoI[iut 7' :9¥ep O) PIZI[Eay

UOL[[I '] [ PISAAU]

UOI[[IWL GT§ PINIITOT)

8661 ‘A[nf Paso[)
SuLIn)oBINUBIA [IB A




ures uoI[[I £¢§ © 10} DS 6661 PAIeWNsd
XG 71 18 [[9S 01 Jo1Iey)) PIM JUIUWAAIT. PAUSIS —

SJUQWIWIO)) o
(95012 66/S1/6 & SuUUNSSR) %8°6TT YUl
(M0]2Q 93S) UOI[[IW (7§ :AN[BA SUTUTRWY e
-0$- :91ep 0] PIZI[BIY

UOI[[IW CTS PRISOAU] e

Q661 ‘Toquialdag paso[) e

SUOTRITUNWWO) YUI TIdU]




v dn-yIew JuedIJIUSIS 18 OJ] SULIOPISUOD JWIIA —
wrelsoxd uonisinboe ym uerd uQ —

SIUQUWILIO))

| V/N -l
(1509) UOI[[TW G :N[BA SUTUTRWY

-(0$- 191ep 01 PAZI[eay
UOI[[IW GT$ PAISAAU]
UOI[TW G7§ PANIUWO)
6661 ‘Arenuef paso)
SSUIP[OH YoniL A




Cl

punoJ SurdUeBUL} MU I0J SUOISSNOSIP U] —
ad£10101d SuDjIOM PIdNPOI] —

SJUQUILIO))

| V/N -ddl
(1502) UOI[[IW K¢ :AN[BA SUTUTRUIIY

-0$- :91Bp 01 PAZI[eay
UoI[ruu 8§ paisaAU]

6661 ‘Arenue[ paso[)

10)SBIQ T,




91

Surstwoad
sY00[ orjoja10d JUAUNSIAUI-00 ODIALLN
sdo orjopaod 03 @oﬁ@m-mim A—
asnIadxa jjels spring —
welsold puny syuswdwo)) —
SUIN)aI sQdueyuUy —

SUDIOM ST AZAIRIIS JUSW)SIAUI-0)) e

WRIS0IJ JUUISIAUT-0))
ODIANLLN Ay} JO Arewuuing







%9ST  BI'EL  %OTI %YL WSS BYS  BI'S  BST ANnd
%BLIT  BIYL  BTTI %YL %BES  BEY BV BIY ALT
(aneA *Pfur) 9 PI)SIAU]
0€6°1 GTS'T L6T'T 63L 9¢L 63t L¥€ S67  (9nfeA pjur) pajgsaAu]
LEE 91t S0S 996 616 uonoofoid g6 [nf
L6€ 69¢ 843 443 GS¢ 0¢¢ uonoaloid L6 AON
vET L¥T 60¢ S9¢ G8T uonooloid 96 Iny
921 CLT 0T S9¢ 68T uonoaloid G6 [nf
mwﬁ@EﬁEEOU
9I1°CT  +&H'IT  98L°01  SLI'OT  LI19'6 uonosloid 86 1nf
PEIT  6EL°0T  STI'0OL  S¥S'6 1006 €678 uonooloid L6 AON
996 €TI'6 8¢9°8 681°8  ILLL  ¥8E€L  9I0°L LIS9 uonoaloid 6 [nf
aseq 19ssV AL 1/ANd

200T T00T 000T 6661 8661  L66T 9661  S66I




4 8¢c066 Ue|ds|x3|qang

%S 9l %6 G D LEL oS S (poreoorreun) osed 19ssy 411/4Nd %
O N I R o7 i IR Q] 0 ] ) R 0 (suor[ru §) osed 19sSy AL T/dNd
63661 L8iF6C I S (0199¢ LR C] Ll onfeA Surpuyg
€S9 (44 C 280 (91) c99¥ Sn[eA pozZifealuf)

(09sy) (9cie) Weon) (Tel)  (Terh) SuTED) PIZI[eay JON/SWOU]

(6'000) (1'691) (¢sz) (I°19) (6°1¥¢) [eade) jo oy
¢SOy €8Sy A% L1ST 9°960°1 umopumel(J
it L1090 T Ng SIS sl R0 oneA Suruuisog

[e3nde)) pajsaauy
C1v68 L796 0°600°T T0S6 [ ¥€8 Soue[eqg umelpu() Suipug

(Tsop) (£8sy) (Tosy) (L'1ST)  (97960°1) umopumel(g
OLsY 091Iv 0°S0¢S 8'Lve L0S6°1 P°PPV
L"C96 0'600°l T0S6 VS8 00 Joueeq Suruuiseg

[ende) papruauo))
200¢ 100¢C 0007 6661  66/8T/C 01 (SNOITTIN $)
uereyq uondaduy
pagdaloag

NVIDO0Ud ATAVLAMNIVIN NON

SALLINOA AALLVNIALTV




66/0¢/v L Wey) spoday\uonosiold yseo\@oxa\elep\:p

9G00¢ 2¥00c 9€00¢ 9200¢ ©1002¢ ©000¢ 9666 1 866} /661
“ “ f _ _ “ _ %E

%S

Yol

%6

S i s—
=L

%Ll

%E L

%Sk

YLl

%6}
welboud uaiin)

spun4 |e1o] jo abejuadiad e Se SjuaWilSanu] alealld




66/0¢/v | Ley) spoday\uonoaloid yseo\|eoxa\elep\:p
9G00¢ 31002 9€00¢ 92¢00¢ 9100¢ 9000¢ 9666 - 8661 L6611
i } i i f _ i %E
+ %S

YL

%6

=[] i—
3. ==

%t

%EL

%S|

T %Ll

%6}

wesboid ay) ul 8Bueyd ou Yum NOS8$ [euonippe buiwnsse
spun4 |e10] JO abejuadiad e se Sjuswilsanu| ajeAlld




resde)/(snoys - ssuoy (7)
$110YS + S3uoT (1)

%0°L UONEd0[[V [eNNoN

%€ 0T (ALT 3O %) uonedo[[y [emoy

#'L0ST onfeA ALT

%BO'L %BE'E S'LST pauIquio)

%65 %60T  WSL  WBYEL %0°L %BL9 8°G¢ ‘SIS "dg/qry SN Tende) uofrereq
%S6 BEIT  %B6S  BYSI %0°L %BL'6 % ofeniqly 1050 siouped Ao

%0 %00 %001 %001 %0°L %BYTI-  L'8L [eNNoN 1IN INATY
%09 %0ST  %S6  %SSI %0°L %BEST 686 pung 93poH oni], pung YOLRABN

(7) amsodxyg (1) eansodxy 1I0US 3uog %[+ wmey  (suoru §) A391enS pung
$S0ID) SIIQ-L SO OI0JI0d  °onJeA

1N

66/1€/€ AAANH SHINOIW NHAHS 404
HONVINHOAdAd
ATIVIINIVIA - SHILINOA AALLVNIHALTV
ANNA IWIHAL ONO'T



B6CY066/6C¥066/P0G/00UWnn

(6661 ‘¢z dunf) Sunddw preoq IXaN :AIAIPJ

MITAJY J133JBN)S
(86/8 uondadur duIS) SSUIP[OH OI[0J)I0J JO MIIANY ¢
MITAIY UOTIBIO[[Y 19SSV

(Spunyf 93pPIH/uIN)Y IN[0SqY) I[qBINIBIA

MITAY JI3INeNS

(ATuo 661 150d) MIAY Auedwo)) orjoj)I0g
(uondadur duIS) SSUIP[OH OI[0J)I0J JO MIAIANY ¢
MITAIY UONBIO[[Y 19SSV ¢

(£ymb7 3jeALL]) [qeIIBIA UON

MATAHTY SAHLVIDOSSY HDAIddINYI

; SHILLINOA AALLVNIALTV



THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM
PERMANENT UNIVERSITY FUND
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Purpose

The Permanent University Fund (the “Fund”) is a public endowment contributing to the
support of institutions of The University of Texas System (other than The University of
Texas-Pan American and The University of Texas at Brownsville) and institutions of The
Texas A&M University System (other than Texas A&M University--Corpus Christi, Texas
A&M International University, Texas A&M University--Kingsville, West Texas A&M
University, Texas A&M University—Commerce, Texas A&M University--Texarkana, and
Baylor College of Dentistry).

Fund Organization

The Permanent University Fund was established in the Texas Constitution of 1876 through
the appropriation of land grants previously given to The University of Texas at Austin plus
one million acres. The land grants to the Permanent University Fund were completed in 1883
with the contribution of an additional one million acres of land. Today, the Permanent
University Fund contains 2,109,190 acres of land (the “PUF Lands”) located in 24 counties
primarily in West Texas.

The 2.1 million acres comprising the PUF Lands produce two streams of income: a) mineral
income, primarily in the form of oil and gas royalties and b) surface income, in the form of
surface leases and easements. Under the Texas Constitution, mineral income, as a non-
renewable source of income, remains a non-distributable part of PUF corpus, and is invested
in securities. Surface income, as a renewable source of income, is distributed to the
Available University Fund, (the “AUF”) as received.

The Constitution prohibits the distribution and expenditure of mineral income contributed to
the Fund and the realized and unrealized gains earned from Fund investments. The
Constitution also requires the distribution of all PUF investment income to the AUF to be
expended for certain authorized purposes.

The expenditure of PUF income distributed to the AUF is subject to a prescribed order of
priority:

First, expenses incurred in the administration of PUF Lands and Investments. Resolutions
adopted by the U. T. Board of Regents (the “U. T. Board”) require that administrative
expenses of the PUF be restricted to a minimum consistent with prudent business judgment.
Second, following a 2/3rds and 1/3rd allocation of distributed PUF income (net of
administrative expenses) to the U. T. System and Texas A&M University System,
respectively, expenditures for debt service on PUF bonds. Article VII of the Texas

c:\temp\pufpol.docestemp\vtebgfpe-doe




Constitution authorizes the U. T. Board and the Texas A&M University System (the
“TAMUS Board”) to issue bonds payable from their respective interests in distributed PUF
income to finance permanent improvements and to refinance outstanding PUF obligations.
The Constitution limits the amount of bonds and notes secured by each System’s interest in
divisible PUF income to 20% and 10% of the book value of PUF investment securities,
respectively. Bond resolutions adopted by both Boards also prohibit the issuance of
additional PUF parity obligations unless the projected interest in PUF net income for each
System covers projected debt service at least 1.5 times.

Third, expenditures to fund a) excellence programs specifically at U. T. Austin, Texas A&M
University and Prairie View A&M University and b) the administration of the university
systems.

The distribution of income and expenditures from the PUF to the AUF is depicted below in
Exhibit 1:
Exhibit 1

Permanent University Fund

West Texas Lands In
(2.1 million acres)

Mineral Receipts

Surface Dividend and
Income Interest Income

Available University Fund

Less Divisible Expenditures

A

2/3 t0 UT System 1/3 to A&M System
Payment of interest & principal ' Payment of interest & principal

on UT-issued PUF Bonds

:

The University of Texas at Austin

c:\tempipufpol.docestempivirbgfee-dos

on A&M-issued PUF Bonds

!

Texas A&M University
Prairie View A&M University




i

Fund Management
Article VII of the Texas Constitution assigns fiduciary responsibility for managing and

- investing the Fund to the U. T. Board. Article VII authorizes the U. T. Board, subject to

procedures and restrictions it establishes, to invest the Fund in any kind of investments and in
amounts it considers appropriate, provided that it adheres to the prudent person investment
standard. This standard requires that the U. T. Board, in making investments, shall exercise
the judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which persons of ordinary
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not in
regard to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of their funds, considering
the probable income therefrom as well as the probable safety of their capital.

Ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the Fund rests with the Board. Section 66.08 of the
Texas Education Code authorizes the U. T. Board to delegate to its committees, officers or
employees of the U. T. System and other agents the authority to act for the U. T. Board in
investment of the PUF. The Fund shall be managed through The University of Texas
Investment Management Company ("UTIMCO") which shall a) recommend investment
policy for the Fund, b) determine specific asset allocation targets, ranges and performance
benchmarks consistent with Fund objectives, and ¢) monitor Fund performance against Fund
objectives. UTIMCO shall invest the Fund’s assets in conformity with investment policy.

Unaffiliated investment managers may be hired by UTIMCO to improve the Fund’s return
and risk characteristics. Such managers shall have complete investment discretion unless
restricted by the terms of their management contracts. Managers shall be monitored for
performance and adherence to investment disciplines.

Fund Administration

UTIMCO shall employ an administrative staff to ensure that all transaction and accounting
records are complete and prepared on a timely basis. Internal controls shall be emphasized so
as to provide for responsible separation of duties and adequacy of an audit trail. Custody of
Fund assets shall comply with applicable law and be structured so as to provide essential
safekeeping and trading efficiency.

Fund Investment Objectives

The primary investment objective shall be to preserve the purchasing power of Fund assets
and annual distributions by earning an average annual total return after inflation of 5.5% over
rolling ten-year periods or longer. The Fund’s success in meeting its objectives depends
upon its ability to generate high returns in periods of low inflation that will offset lower
returns generated in years when the capital markets underperform the rate of inflation.

The secondary fund objective is to generate a fund return in excess of the Policy Portfolio
benchmark over rolling five-year periods or longer. The Policy Portfolio benchmark will be
established by UTIMCO and will be comprised of a blend of asset class indices weighted to
reflect Fund asset allocation policy targets.

c:\temp'pufpol.doces\tempivirbaipe-dee




The U. T. Board recognizes that achievement of Fund investment objectives is substantially |
hindered by the inability to make distributions on a total return basis and current distribution
rates in excess of long-term equilibrium levels.

Asset Allocation

Asset allocation is the primary determinant of investment performance and subject to the
asset allocation ranges specified herein is the responsibility of UTIMCO. Specific asset
allocation targets may be changed from time to time based on the economic and investment
outlook.

Fund assets shall be allocated among the following broad asset classes based upon their
individual return/risk characteristics and relationships to other asset classes:

1. Cash Equivalents - are highly reliable in protecting the purchasing power of current
income streams but historically have not provided a reliable return in excess of
inflation. Cash equivalents provide good liquidity under both deflation and inflation
conditions.

2. Fixed Income Investments - offer the best protection for hedging against the threat of
deflation by providing a dependable and predictable source of Fund income. Such
bonds should be high quality, and intermediate to long-term maturity with reasonable
call protection in order to ensure the generation of current income and preservation of
nominal capital even during periods of severe economic contraction.

3. Equities - provide both current income and growth of income, but their principal
purpose is to provide appreciation of the Fund. Historically, returns for equities have
been higher than for bonds over all extended periods. As such, equities represent the
best chance of preserving the purchasing power of the Fund.

4. Alternative Investments - generally consist of alternative marketable investments and
alternative nonmarketable investments.

c:\temp\pufpol.docertemp'virbaige-dee




Alternative Marketable Investments Equities -

These investments are broadly defined to include hedge funds, arbitrage and
special situation funds, high yield bonds, distressed debt, market neutral,
commodities and other non-traditional investment strategies whose underlying
securities are traded on public exchanges or are otherwise readily marketable.
Alternative marketable investments may be made directly by UTIMCO or
through partnerships. -If these investments are made through partnerships As
sueh; they offer faster drawdown of committed capital and earlier realization
potential than alternative non-marketable investments. Alternative marketable
investments say-be-made through partnerships;-but-they will generally
provide investors with liquidity at least annually.

Alternative Non-mMarketable Investments -

Alternative Nonmarketable investments shall be expected to eamn superior
equity type returns over extended periods. The advantages of alternative
nonmarketable investments are that they enhance long-term returns through
investment in inefficient, complex markets. They offer reduced volatility of
Fund asset values through their characteristics of low correlation with listed
equities and fixed income instruments. The disadvantages of this asset class

are that they may be illiquid, require higher and more complex fees, and are

frequently dependent on the quality of external managers. In addition, they
possess a limited return history versus traditional stocks and bonds. The risk
of alternative nonmarketable investments shall be controlled with extensive
due diligence and diversification. These investments are held either through
limited partnership or as direct ownership interests. They include special
equity, mezzanine venture capital, oil and gas, real estate and other
investments that are privately held and which are not registered for sale on
public exchanges. In partnership form, these investments require a
commitment of capital for extended periods of time with no liquidity.

Asset Allocation Policy

The asset allocation policy and ranges herein recognize that the Fund’s return/risk profile can
be enhanced by diversifying the Fund’s investments across different types of assets whose
returns are not closely correlated. The targets and ranges seek to protect the Fund against
both routine illiquidity in normal markets and extraordinary illiquidity during a period of
extended deflation.

The long-term asset allocation policy for the Fund must recognize that the 5.5% real return
objective requires a high allocation to broadly defined equities, including domestic,
international stocks, and alternative equity investments of 50% to 90%. The allocation to
Fixed Income should therefore not exceed 50% of the Fund.

c:\temp'pufpol.docetempivtebgfge-dos




The Board delegates authority to UTIMCO to establish specific neutral asset allocations and
ranges within the broad policy guidelines described above. UTIMCO may establish specific
asset allocation targets and ranges for large and small capitalization U. S. stocks, established
and emerging market international stocks, marketable and non-marketable alternative equity
investments, and other asset classes as well as the specific performance objectives for each
asset class. Specific asset allocation policies shall be decided by UTIMCO and reported to
the U. T. Board.

Performance Measurement

The investment performance of the Fund will be measured by an unaffiliated organization,
with recognized expertise in this field and reporting responsibility to the UTIMCO Board,
and compared against the stated investment benchmarks of the Fund. Such measurement will
occur at least annually, and evaluate the results of the total Fund, major classes of investment
assets, and individual portfolios.

Investment Guidelines
The Fund must be invested at all times in strict compliance with applicable law. The primary

and constant standard for making investment decisions is the "Prudent Person Rule."

Investment guidelines include the following:

General

. Investment guidelines for index and other commingled funds managed externally
shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the Investment Management
Contract.

. All investments will be U. S. dollar denominated assets unless held by an internal or
external portfolio manager with discretion to invest in foreign currency denominated
securities.

. Investment policies of any unaffiliated liquid investment fund must be reviewed and
approved by the chief investment officer prior to investment of Fund assets in such
liquid investment fund.

o No securities may be purchased or held which would jeopardize the Fund’s tax-
exempt status.

. No investment strategy or program may purchase securities on margin or use leverage
unless specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

. No investment strategy or program employing short sales may be made unless

specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

o The Fund may utilize Derivative Securities with the approval of the UTIMCO Board
to; a) simulate the purchase or sale of an underlying market index while retaining a
cash balance for fund management purposes; b) to facilitate trading; c) to reduce

~ transaction costs; d) to seek higher investment returns when a Derivative Security is
priced more attractively than the underlying security; €) to index or to hedge risks

c:Mtempipufpol.docertempivirbgfpe-doe




associated with Fund investments; or f) to adjust the market exposure of the asset
allocation, including long and short strategies; provided that: i) no leverage is
employed in the implementation of such Derivative purchases or sales, ii) no more
than 5% of Fund assets are required as an intitial margin deposit for such contracts;
iii) the Fund’s investments in warrants shall not exceed more than 5% of the Fund’s
net assets or 2% with respect to warrants not listed on the New York or American
Stock Exchanges. Notwithstanding the above, leverage strategies are permissible
within the alternative equities investment class with the approval of the UTIMCO
Board, if the investment strategy is uncorrelated to the Fund as a whole, the manager
has demonstrated skill in the strategy, the strategy implements systematic risk control
techniques, value at risk measures, and pre-defined risk parameters.

Such Derivative Securities shall be defined to be those instruments whose value is
derived, in whole or part, from the value of any one or more underlying assets, or
index of assets (such as stocks, bonds, commodities, interest rates, and currencies)
and evidenced by forward, futures, swap, cap, floor, option, and other applicable
contracts.

UTIMCO shall attempt to minimize the risk of an imperfect correlation between the
change in market value of the securities held by the Fund and the prices of Derivative
Security investments by investing in only those contracts whose behavior is expected
to resemble that of the Fund’s underlying securities. UTIMCO also shall attempt to
minimize the risk of an illiquid secondary market for a Derivative Security contract
and the resulting inability to close a position prior to its maturity date by entering into
such transactions on an exchange with an active and liquid secondary market. The net
market value of exposure of Derivative Securities purchased or sold over the counter
may not represent more than 15% of the net assets of the Fund.

In the event that there are no Derivative Securities traded on a particular market index
such as MSCI EAFE, the Fund may utilize a composite of other Derivative Security
contracts to simulate the performance of such index. UTIMCO shall attempt to
reduce any tracking error from the low correlation of the selected Derivative
Securities with its index by investing in contracts whose behavior is expected to
resemble that of the underlying securities.

UTIMCO shall minimize the risk that a party will default on its payment obligation
under a Derivative Security agreement by entering into agreements that mark to
market no less frequently than monthly and where the counterparty is an investment
grade credit. UTIMCO also shall attempt to mitigate the risk that the Fund will not be
able to meet its obligation to the counterparty by investing the Fund in the specific
asset for which it is obligated to pay a return or by holding adequate short-term
investments.

c:\tempipufpol.docetempivirbgfpedec




The Fund may be invested in foreign currency forward and foreign currency futures
contracts in order to maintain the same currency exposure as its respective index or to
protect against anticipated adverse changes in exchange rates among foreign
currencies and between foreign currencies and the U. S. dollar.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Holdings of cash and cash equivalents may include internal short term pooled investment
funds managed by UTIMCO.

. Unaffiliated liquid investment funds as sust-be approved by the chief investment
officer.

. Deposits of the Texas State Treasury.

Commercial paper must be rated in the two highest quality classes by Moody’s
Investors Service, Inc. (P1 or P2) or Standard & Poor’s Corporation (Al or A2).

. Negotiable certificates of deposit must be with a bank that is associated with a
holding company meeting the commercial paper rating criteria specified above or that
has a certificate of deposit rating of 1 or better by Duff & Phelps.

. Bankers’ Acceptances must be guaranteed by an accepting bank with a minimum

certificate of deposit rating of 1 by Duff & Phelps.

. . V - v, -

by Duff-&Phelps-

. Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements must be transacted
with a dealer that is approved by UTIMCO and selected by the Federal Reserve Bank
as a Primary Dealer in U. S. Treasury securities and rated A-1 or P-1 or the '

equivalent.

. Each approved counterparty shall execute the Standard Public Securities Association
(PSA) Master Repurchase Agreement with UTIMCO.

. Eligible Collateral Securities for Repurchase Agreements are limited to U. S.

Treasury securities and U. S. Government Agency securities with a maturity of not
more than 10 years.
The maturity for a Repurchase Agreement may be from one day to two weeks.

. The value of all collateral shall be maintained at 102% of the notional value of the
Repurchase Agreement, valued daily.

. All collateral shall be delivered to the PUF custodian bank. Tri-party collateral
arrangements are not permitted.

. The aggregate amount of Repurchase Agreements with maturities greater than seven
calendar days may not exceed 10% of the Fund’s fixed income assets.
. Overnight Repurchase Agreements may not exceed 25% of the Fund’s fixed income
assets.
8

¢:\tempipufpol.docestempivirbgfpe-doe




. Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) Dollar Rolls shall be executed as matched book
transactions in the same manner as Reverse Repurchase Agreements above. As
above, the rules for trading MBS Dollar Rolls shall follow the Public Securities
Association standard industry terms.

Fixed Income

Holdings of domestic fixed income securities shall be limited to those securities a) issued by
or fully guaranteed by the U. S. Treasury, U. S. Government-Sponsored Enterprises, or U. S.
Government Agencies and b) issued by corporations and municipalities. Within this overall
limitation:

e Not less than 50% of the market value of domestic fixed income securities shall be
invested in direct obligations of the U. S. Treasury, U. S. government agencies, and U. S.
government sponsored entities.

e Not more than 5% of the market value of domestic fixed income securities may be
invested in corporate and municipal bonds of a single issuer provided that such bonds, at
the time of purchase are rated, not less than Baa3 or BBB-, or the equivalent, by any two
nationally-recognized rating services, such as Moody’s Investors Service, Standard &
Poor’s Corporation, or Fitch Investors Service.

e The weighted average maturity of the domestic fixed income portfolio shall be not less
than ten years unless approved in advance by the UTIMCO Board.

These guidelines shall not require the sale of any fixed income investments prior to their
scheduled maturities unless the credit quality of the fixed income portfolio shall decline
below Aa2.

c:\temp\pufpol.docestempiviebgfge-dee




Equities

e The Fund shall:

— hold no more than 25% of its equity securities in any one industry or
industries (as defined by the standard industry classification code and
supplemented by other reliable data sources) at market

— hold no more than 5% of its equity securities in the securities of one
corporation at cost unless authorized by the chief investment officer.

Alternative InvestmentsEquities

Investments in alternative equities-assets may be made through management contracts with
unaffiliated organizations (including but not limited to limited partnerships, trusts, and joint
ventures) so long as such organizations:

e possess specialized investment skills
e possess full investment discretion subject to the management agreement
are managed by principals with a demonstrated record of accomplishment
and performance in the investment strategy being undertaken
e align the interests of the investor group with the management as closely as
possible
e charge fees and performance compensation which do not exceed prevailing industry
norms at the time the terms are negotiated.

Investments in alternative nonmarketable assets equities also may be made directly by
UTIMCO in co-investment transactions sponsored by and invested in by a management firm
or partnership in which the Fund has invested prior to the co-investment or in transactions
sponsored by investment firms well-known to UTIMCO management, provided that such
direct investments shall not exceed 25% of the market value of the alternative nonmarketable
assets portfolio at the time of the direct investment. '

Members of UTIMCO management, with the approval of the UTIMCO Board, may serve as
directors of companies in which UTIMCO has directly invested Fund assets. In such event,
any and all compensation paid to UTIMCO management for their services as directors shall
be endorsed over to UTIMCO and applied against UTIMCO management fees. Furthermore,
UTIMCO Board approval of UTIMCO management’s service as a director of an investee
company shall be conditioned upon the extension of UTIMCO’s Directors and Officers
Insurance Policy coverage to UTIMCO management’s service as a director of an investee
company.

10

¢:\temp\pufpol.docetesmpivtebgfse-dec




Fund Distributions
The Fund shall balance the needs and interests of present beneficiaries with those of the
future. Fund spending policy objectives shall be to:

a) provide a predictable, stable stream of distributions over time

b) ensure that the inflation adjusted value of distributions is maintained over
the long-term

c¢) ensure that the inflation adjusted value of Fund assets after distributions is
maintained over the long-term.

The goal is for the Fund’s average spending rate over time not to exceed the Fund’s average
annual investment return after inflation in order to preserve the purchasing power of Fund
distributions and underlying assets.

The Texas Constitution requires that all dividends, interest and other income earned from
Fund investments be distributed to the AUF. At the same time, the Constitution prohibits the
distribution of mineral income contributed to the Fund and any realized and unrealized gains
earned on such contributions.

UTIMCO shall be responsible for the establishment of the Fund’s asset allocation so as to
produce an annual income distribution that balances the needs of current beneficiaries with
those of future beneficiaries. The Board explicitly recognizes that the generation of income
under the Constitutional provisions governing the Fund is highly dependent upon the level of
interest rates over which the UTIMCO Board has no control. It also recognizes that the
distribution rate as a percentage of the Fund’s assets is above average and that the
maintenance of current levels of distributed income reduces the UTIMCO Board’s ability to
grow income over time. '

Fund Accounting

The fiscal year of the Fund shall begin on September 1st and end on August 31st. Market

~ value of the Fund shall be maintained on an accrual basis in compliance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statements, Government Accounting Standards Board
Statements, industry guidelines, and state statutes, whichever is applicable. Significant asset
write-offs or write-downs shall be approved by the chief investment officer and reported to
the UTIMCO Board.

Valuation of Assets

As of the close of business on the last business day of each month, UTIMCO shall determine
the fair market value of all Fund net assets. Such valuation of Fund assets shall be based on
the bank trust custody agreement in effect at the date of valuation. Valuation of alternative
assets shall be determined in accordance with the UTIMCO Valuation Criteria for Alternative
Assets.

11

c:terp\pufpol.docestempivirbgfpe-des




The fair market value of the Fund’s net assets shall include all related receivables and
payables of the Fund on the valuation. Such valuation shall be final and conclusive.

Securities Lending

The Fund may participate in a securities lending contract with a bank or nonbank security
lending agent for either short-term or long-term purposes of realizing additional income.
Loans of securities by the Fund shall be collateralized by cash, letters of credit or securities
issued or guaranteed by the U. S. Government or its agencies. The collateral will equal at
least 100% of the current market value of the loaned securities. The contract shall state
acceptable collateral for securities loaned, duties of the borrower, delivery of loaned
securities and collateral, acceptable investment of collateral and indemnification provisions.
The contract may include other provisions as appropriate. The securities lending program
will be evaluated from time to time as deemed necessary by the UTIMCO Board. Monthly
reports issued by the agent shall be reviewed by UTIMCO to insure compliance with contract
provisions.

Investor Responsibility

As a shareholder, the Fund has the right to a voice in corporate affairs consistent with those
of any shareholder. These include the right and obligation to vote proxies in a manner
consistent with the unique role and mission of higher education as well as for the economic
benefit of the Fund. Notwithstanding the above, the UTIMCO Board shall discharge its
fiduciary duties with respect to the Fund solely in the interest of Fund unitholders and shall
not invest the Fund so as to achieve temporal benefits for any purpose including use of its
economic power to advance social or political purposes.

Amendment of Policy Statement ;
The Board of Regents reserves the right to amend the Investment Policy Statement as it
deems necessary or advisable.

Effective Date
The effective date of this policy shall be August 12Eebraary-1t, 1999.

Click here for PUF Specific Asset Allocation, Expected Return and Risk, Neutral Position,
Ranges, and Performance Objectives '

12
citenp\pufpol.docestempivirbgfpedoe







THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM
LONG TERM FUND
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Purpose

The Long Term Fund (the "Fund"), succeeded the Common Trust Fund in February, 1995,
and was established by the Board of Regents of The University of Texas System (the
"Board") as a pooled fund for the collective investment of private endowments and other
long-term funds supporting various programs of The University of Texas System. The Fund
provides for greater diversification of 1nvestments than would be possible if each account
were managed separately.

Fund Organization

The Fund is organized as a mutual fund in which each eligible account purchases and
redeems Fund units as provided herein. The ownership of Fund assets shall at all times be
vested in the Board. Such assets shall be deemed to be held by the Board, as a fiduciary,
regardless of the name in which the assets may be registered.

Fund Management

Ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the Fund rests with the Board. Section 163 of the
Property Code authorizes the U. T. Board to delegate to its committees, officers or employees
of the U. T. System and other agents the authority to act for the U. T. Board in the investment
of the Fund. The Fund shall be governed through The University of Texas Investment
Management Company ("UTIMCO") which shall a) recommend investment policy for the
Fund, b) determine specific asset allocation targets, ranges, and performance benchmarks
consistent with Fund objectives, and c) monitor Fund performance against Fund objectives.
UTIMCO shall invest the Fund assets in conformity with investment policy.

Unaffiliated investment managers may be hired by UTIMCO to improve the Fund’s return
and risk characteristics. Such managers shall have complete investment discretion unless
restricted by the terms of their management contracts. Managers shall be monitored for
performance and adherence to investment disciplines.

Fund Administration

UTIMCO shall employ an administrative staff to ensure that all transaction and accounting
records are complete and prepared on a timely basis. Internal controls shall be emphasized so
as to provide for responsible separation of duties and adequacy of an audit trail. Custody of
Fund assets shall comply with applicable law and be structured so as to provide essential
safekeeping and trading efficiency.

1
citempiitfpol. dochuis—eamvolTwsersiadmshareipolicies 000 kfdoe




Funds Eligible to Purchase Fund Units
No fund shall be eligible to purchase units of the Fund unless it is under the sole control, with
full discretion as to investments, by the Board and/or UTIMCO.

Any fund whose governing instrument contains provisions which conflict with this Policy
Statement, whether initially or as a result of amendments to either document, shall not be
eligible to purchase or hold units of the Fund.

The funds of a foundation which is structured as a supporting organization described in
Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, which supports the activities of the
U. T. System and its component institutions, may purchase units in the Fund provided that:

A. the purchase of Fund units by foundation funds is approved by the chief
investment officer

B. all members of the foundation's governing board are also members of the Board

C. the foundation has the same fiscal year as the Fund

D. a contract between the Board and the foundation has been executed authorizing
investment of foundation funds in the Fund

E. no officer of such foundation, other than members of the Board, the Chancellor,

the chief investment officer or his or her delegate shall have any control over the
management of the Fund other than to request purchase and redemption of Fund
units.

Fund Investment Objectives

The primary investment objective shall be to preserve the purchasing power of Fund assets
and annual distributions by earning an average annual total return after inflation of 5.5% over
rolling ten year periods or longer. The Fund’s success in meeting its objectives depends upon
its ability to generate high returns in periods of low inflation that will offset lower returns
generated in years when the capital markets underperform the rate of inflation.

The secondary fund objectives are to generate a fund return in excess of the Policy Portfolio
benchmark and the average median return of the universe of the college and university
endowments as reported annually by Cambridge Associates and NACUBO over rolling five-
year periods or longer. The Policy Portfolio benchmark will be established by UTIMCO and
will be comprised of a blend of asset class indices weighted to reflect Fund’s asset allocation
policy targets.

Asset Allocation

Asset allocation is the primary determinant of investment performance and, subject to the
asset allocation ranges specified herein, is the responsibility of UTIMCO. Specific asset
allocation targets may be changed from time to time based on the economic and investment
outlook. Fund assets shall be allocated among the following broad asset classes based upon
their individual return/risk characteristics and relationships to other asset classes:

¢:Mempiitfpol.dock




1. Cash Equivalents - are highly reliable in protecting the purchasing power of current
income streams but historically have not provided a reliable return in excess of
inflation. Cash equivalents provide good liquidity under both deflation and inflation
conditions.

2. Fixed Income Investments - offer the best protection for hedging against the threat of
deflation by providing a dependable and predictable source of Fund income. Such
bonds should be high quality, and intermediate to long-term duration with reasonable
call protection in order to ensure the generation of current income and preservation of
nominal capital even during periods of severe economic contraction.

3. Equities - provide both current income and growth of income, but their principal
purpose is to provide appreciation of the Fund. Historically, returns for equities have
been higher than for bonds over all extended periods. Therefore, equities represent
the best chance of preserving the purchasing power of the Fund.

4. Alternative InvestmentsEguities - generally consist of alternative marketable

1nvestments and altematlve non—marketable 1nvestments Akema&%tequﬁy

Alternative Marketable InvestmentsAssetsMarketable-Equities -

These investments are broadly defined to include hedge funds, arbitrage and
special situation funds, high yield bonds, distressed debt, market neutral,
commodities and other non-traditional investment strategies whose underlying
securities are traded on public exchanges or are otherwise readily marketable.
Alternative marketable investments may be made directly by UTIMCO or
through partnerships. -If these investments are made through partnerships As
sueh; they offer faster drawdown of committed capital and earlier realization
potential than alternative non-marketable investments—Alternative marketable
investments may-be-made through partnerships;-but-they-will generally
provide investors with liquidity at least annually.

cMempiltfpol.doch




!
]
|
|
|
|
|
E
|
|

Alternative Non-mMarketable Investments -

Alternative Nonmarketable investments shall be expected to earn superior
equity type returns over extended periods. The advantages of alternative
nonmarketable investments are that they enhance long-term returns through
investment in inefficient, complex markets. They offer reduced volatility of
Fund asset values through their characteristics of low correlation with listed
equities and fixed income instruments. The disadvantages of this asset class
are that they may be illiquid, require higher and more complex fees, and are
frequently dependent on the quality of external managers. In addition, they
possess a limited return history versus traditional stocks and bonds. The risk
of alternative nonmarketable investments shall be controlled with extensive
due diligence and diversification. These investments are held through either
limited partnership or as direct ownership interests. They include special
equity, mezzanine venture capital, oil and gas, real estate and other
investments that are privately held and which are not registered for sale on
public exchanges. In partnership form, these investments require a
commitment of capital for extended periods of time with no liquidity. They
also generally require an extended period of time to achieve targeted
investment levels.

Asset Allocation Policy

The asset allocation policy and ranges herein recognize that the Fund’s return/risk profile can
be enhanced by diversifying the Fund’s investments across different types of assets whose
returns are not closely correlated. The targets and ranges seek to protect the Fund against
both routine illiquidity in normal markets and extraordinary illiquidity during a period of
extended deflation.

The long-term asset allocation policy for the Fund must recognize that the 5.5% real return
objective requires a high allocation to broadly defined equities, including domestic,
international stocks, and alternative equity investments, of 68% to 90%. The allocation to
fixed income investments should therefore not exceed 32% of the Fund.

The Board delegates authority to UTIMCO to establish specific neutral asset allocations and
ranges within the broad policy guidelines described above. UTIMCO may establish specific
asset allocation targets and ranges for large and small capitalization U. S. stocks, established

~ and emerging market international stocks, marketable and non-marketable alternative equity

investments, and other asset classes as well as the specific performance objectives for each
asset class. Specific asset allocation policies shall be decided by UTIMCO and reported to
the U. T. Board.

Performance Measurement )
The investment performance of the Fund will be measured by an unaffiliated organization,
with recognized expertise in this field and reporting responsibility to the UTIMCO Board,

citempiitfpol.dock




and compared against the stated investment benchmarks of the Fund. Such measurement will
occur at least annually, and evaluate the results of the total Fund, major classes of investment

.assets, and individual portfolios.

Investment Guidelines
The Fund must be invested at all times in strict compliance with applicable law. The primary
and constant standard for making investment decisions is the "Prudent Person Rule."

Investment guidelines include the following:

General

. Investment guidelines for index and other commingled funds managed externally
shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the Investment Management
Contract.

. All investments will be U. S. dollar denominated assets unless held by an internal or
external portfolio manager with discretion to invest in foreign currency denominated
securities.

. Investment policies of any unaffiliated liquid investment fund must be reviewed and
approved by the chief investment officer prior to investment of Fund assets in such
liquid investment fund.

. No securities may be purchased or held which jeopardize the Fund’s tax exempt
status.

. No investment strategy or program may purchase securities on margin or use leverage
unless specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

. No investment strategy or program employing short sales may be made unless

specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

o The Fund may utilize Derivative Securities with the approval of the UTIMCO Board
to; a) simulate the purchase or sale of an underlying market index while retaining a
cash balance for fund management purposes; b) to facilitate trading; c) to reduce
transaction costs; d) to seek higher investment returns when a Derivative Security is
priced more attractively than the underlying security; €) to index or to hedge risks
associated with Fund investments; or f) to adjust the market exposure of the asset
allocation, including long and short strategies; provided that; i) no leverage is
employed in the implementation of such Derivative purchases or sales; i) no more
than 5% of Fund assets are required as an initial margin deposit for such contracts; iii)
the Fund’s investments in warrants shall not exceed more than 5% of the Fund’s net
assets or 2% with respect to warrants not listed on the New York or American Stock
Exchanges. Notwithstanding the above, leverage strategies are permissible within the
alternative equities investment class with the approval of the UTIMCO Board, if the
investment strategy is uncorrelated to the Fund as a whole, the manager has
demonstrated skill in the strategy, the strategy implements systematic risk control
techniques, value at risk measures, and pre-defined risk parameters.

5
c\empiltfpol. dociuts—eamiveliusersiadmshare\policiest 990k deoc




. Such Derivative Securities shall be defined to be those instruments whose value is
derived, in whole or part, from the value of any one or more underlying assets, or
index of assets (such as stocks, bonds, commodities, interest rates, and currencies)
and evidenced by forward, futures, swap, cap, floor, option, and other applicable
contracts.

UTIMCO shall attempt to minimize the risk of an imperfect correlation between the
change in market value of the securities held by the Fund and the prices of Derivative
Security investments by investing in only those contracts whose behavior is expected
to resemble that of the Fund’s underlying securities. UTIMCO also shall attempt to
minimize the risk of an illiquid secondary market for a Derivative Security contract
and the resulting inability to close a position prior to its maturity date by entering into
such transactions on an exchange with an active and liquid secondary market. The net
market value of exposure of Derivative Securities purchased or sold over the counter
may not represent more than 15% of the net assets of the Fund.

In the event that there are no Derivative Securities traded on a particular market index
such as MSCI EAFE, the Fund may utilize a composite of other Derivative Security
contracts to simulate the performance of such index. UTIMCO shall attempt to
reduce any tracking error from the low correlation of the selected Derivative
Securities with its index by investing in contracts whose behavior is expected to
resemble that of the underlying securities.

UTIMCO shall minimize the risk that a party will default on its payment obligation
under a Derivative Security agreement by entering into agreements that mark to
market no less frequently than monthly and where the counterparty is an investment
grade credit. UTIMCO also shall attempt to mitigate the risk that the Fund will not be
able to meet its obligation to the counterparty by investing the Fund in the specific
asset for which it is obligated to pay a return or by holding adequate short-term
investments.

The Fund may be invested in foreign currency forward and foreign currency futures
contracts in order to maintain the same currency exposure as its respective index or to
protect against anticipated adverse changes in exchange rates among foreign

~ currencies and between foreign currencies and the U. S. dollar.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Holdings of cash and cash equivalents may include internal short term pooled investment

funds managed by UTIMCO.

o Unaffiliated liquid investment funds asnrust-be approved by the chief investment
officer.

o Commercial paper must be rated in the two highest quality classes by Moody’s
Investors Service, Inc. (P1 or P2) or Standard & Poor’s Corporation (Al or A2).

¢ Mempiltfpol.doch




o Negotiable certificates of deposit must be with a bank that is associated with a
holding company meeting the commercial paper rating criteria specified above or that
has a certificate of deposit rating of 1 or better by Duff & Phelps.

. Bankers’ Acceptances must be guaranteed by an accepting bank with a minimum
certificate of deposit rating of 1 by Duff & Phelps. '

rating of L-or better by Duff-&Phelps.

. Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements must be transacted
with a dealer that is approved by UTIMCO and selected by the Federal Reserve Bank
as a Primary Dealer in U. S. Treasury securities and rated A-1 or P-1 or the
equivalent.

° Each approved counterparty shall execute the Standard Public Securities
Association (PSA) Master Repurchase Agreement with UTIMCO.

° Eligible Collateral Securities for Repurchase Agreements are limited to U. S.
Treasury securities and U. S. Government Agency securities with a maturity of
not more than 10 years.

° The maturity for a Repurchase Agreement may be from one day to two weeks.

° The value of all collateral shall be maintained at 102% of the notional value of
the Repurchase Agreement, valued daily.

° All collateral shall be delivered to the LTF custodian bank. Tri-party collateral
arrangements are not permitted.

° The aggregate amount of repurchase agreements with maturities greater than seven
calendar days may not exceed 10% of the Fund’s fixed income assets.

o Overnight Repurchase Agreements may not exceed 25% of the Fund’s fixed income
assets.

. Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) Dollar Rolls shall be executed as matched book
transactions in the same manner as Reverse Repurchase Agreements above. As
above, the rules for trading MBS Dollar Rolls shall follow the Public Securities
Association standard industry terms.

Fixed Income

Domestic Fixed Income ,

Holdings of domestic fixed income securities shall be limited to those securities a) issued by
or fully guaranteed by the U. S. Treasury, U. S. Government-Sponsored Enterprises, or U. S.
Government Agencies, and b) issued by corporations and municipalities. Within this overall
limitation:

citempiltfpol.dock




c:tempiltfpol.doc

Permissible securities for investment include the components of the Lehman
Brothers Aggregate Bond Index (LBAGG): investment grade government and
corporate securities, agency mortgage pass-through securities, and asset-backed
securities. These sectors are divided into more specific sub-indices; 1)
Government: Treasury and Agency; 2) Corporate: Industrial, Finance, Utility, and
Yankee; 3) Mortgage-backed securities: GNMA, FHLMC, and FNMA; and 4)
Asset-backed securities. In addition to the permissible securities listed above, the
following securities shall be permissible: a) floating rate securities with periodic
coupon changes in market rates issued by the same entities that are included in the
LBAGG as issuers of fixed rate securities; b) medium term notes issued by
investment grade corporations; c) zero coupon bonds and stripped Treasury and
Agency securities created from coupon securities; and d) structured notes issued
by LBAGG qualified entities.

U.S. Domestic Bonds must be rated investment grade, Baa3 or better by Moody’s
Investors Services, BBB- by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, or an equivalent
rating by a nationally recognized rating agency at the time of acquisition.

Not more than 5% of the market value of domestic fixed income securities may be
invested in corporate and municipal bonds of a single issuer provided that such
bonds, at the time of purchase, are rated, not less than Baa3 or BBB-, or the
equivalent, by any two nationally-recognized rating services, such as Moody’s
Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s Corporation, or Fitch Investors Service.




Non-U.S. Fixed Income

e Not more than 35% of the Fund’s fixed income portfolio may be invested in non-
U. S. dollar bonds. Not more than 15% of the Fund’s fixed income portfolio may
be invested in bonds denominated in any one currency.

e Non-dollar bond investments shall be restricted to bonds rated equivalent to the

- same credit standard as the U.S. Fixed Income Portfolio.

e Not more than 7.5% of the Fund’s fixed income portfolio may be invested in
Emerging Market debt.

¢ International currency exposure may be hedged or unhedged at UTIMCO’s
discretion or delegated by UTIMCO to an external investment manager.

Equities
I. The Fund shall:
A. hold no more than 25% of its equity securities in any one industry or industries (as

defined by the standard industry classification code and supplemented by other
reliable data sources) at market

B. hold no more than 5% of its equity securities in the securities of one corporation
at cost unless authorized by the chief investment officer.

Alternative Investments Assets
Investments in alternative assets may be made through management contracts with
unaffiliated organizations (including but not limited to limited partnerships, trusts,
and joint ventures) so long as such organizations:

possess specialized investment skills
possess full investment discretion subject to the management
agreement : ,
IV.  are managed by principals with a demonstrated record of
accomplishment and performance in the investment strategy being
undertaken
V. align the interests of the investor group with the management as
closely as possible
VI.  charge fees and performance compensation which do not exceed prevailing industry
norms at the time the terms are negotiated.

=Ll

Investments in alternative nonmarketable assets also may be made directly by UTIMCO in l
co-investment transactions sponsored by and invested in by a management firm or

partnership in which the Fund has invested prior to the co-investment or in transactions
sponsored by investment firms well known to UTIMCO management, provided that such

direct investments shall not exceed 25% of the market value of the alternative nonmarketable |
assets portfolio at the time of the direct investment.

citempiltfpol.doct




Members of UTIMCO management, with the approval of the UTIMCO Board, may serve as
directors of companies in which UTIMCO has directly invested Fund assets. In such event,

-any and all compensation paid to UTIMCO management for their services as directors shall
be endorsed over to UTIMCO and applied against UTIMCO management fees. Furthermore,
UTIMCO Board approval of UTIMCO management’s service as a director of an investee
company shall be conditioned upon the extension of UTIMCO?’s Directors and Officers
Insurance Policy coverage to UTIMCO management’s service as a director of an investee
company.

Fund Distributions
The Fund shall balance the needs and interests of present beneficiaries with those of the
future. Fund spending policy objectives shall be to:

a) provide a predictable, stable stream of distributions over time

b) ensure that the inflation adjusted value of distributions is maintained
over the long-term

c) ensure that the inflation adjusted value of Fund assets after

distributions is maintained over the long-term.

The goal is for the Fund’s average spending rate over time not to exceed the Fund’s average
annual investment return after inflation in order to preserve the purchasing power of Fund
distributions and underlying assets.

Pursuant to the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act, a governing board may
distribute, for the uses and purposes for which the fund is established, the net realized
appreciation in the fair market value of the assets of an endowment fund over the historic
dollar value of the fund to the extent prudent under the standard provided by the Act. In
addition, income may be distributed for the purposes associated with the
endowments/foundations.

UTIMCO shall be responsible for establishing the Fund’s distribution percentage and
determining the equivalent per unit rate for any given year. Unless otherwise established by
UTIMCO and approved by the Board or prohibited by the Act, fund distributions shall be
based on the following criteria:

The annual unit distribution amount shall be adjusted annually based on the following
formula:

A. Increase the prior year’s per unit distribution amount (cents per unit) by the
average inflation rate (C.P.L) for the previous twelve quarters. This will be the
per unit distribution amount for the next fiscal year. This amount may be rounded
to the nearest $.0005 per unit.

¢ Mempiltfpol.doct




B. If the inflationary increase in Step A. results in a distribution rate below 3.5%,
(computed by taking the proposed distribution amount per unit divided by the
previous twelve quarter average market value price per unit) the UTIMCO Board,
at its sole discretion, may grant an increase in the distribution amount as long as
such increase does not result in a distribution rate of more than 4.5%.

C. If the distribution rate exceeds 5.5%, (computed by taking the proposed
distribution amount per unit divided by the previous twelve quarter average
market value price per unit) the UTIMCO Board at its sole discretion, may reduce
the per unit distribution amount.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions, the Board of Regents may approve a per
unit distribution amount that, in their judgment, would be more appropriate than the rate
calculated by the policy provisions.

Distributions from the Fund to the unitholders shall be made quarterly as soon as practicable
on or after the last business day of November, February, May, and August of each fiscal year.

Fund Accounting

The fiscal year of the Fund shall begin on September 1st and end on August 31st. Market
value of the Fund shall be maintained on an accrual basis in compliance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statements, Government Accounting Standards Board
Statements, or industry guidelines, whichever is applicable. Significant asset write-offs or
write-downs shall be approved by the chief investment officer and reported to the UTIMCO
Board.

Valuation of Assets

As of the close of business on the last business day of each month, UTIMCO shall determine
the fair market value of all Fund net assets and the net asset value per unit of the Fund. Such
valuation of Fund assets shall be based on the bank trust custody agreement in effect at the
date of valuation. Valuation of alternative assets shall be determined in accordance with the
UTIMCO Valuation Criteria for Alternative Assets.

The fair market value of the Fund’s net assets shall include all related receivables and
payabies of the Fund on the valuation date and the value of each unit thereof shall be its
proportionate part of such net value. Such valuation shall be final and conclusive.

Purchase of Fund Units

Purchase of Fund units may be made on any quarterly purchase date (September 1,
December 1, March 1, and June 1 of each fiscal year or the first business day subsequent
thereto) upon payment of cash to the Fund or contribution of assets approved by the chief
investment officer, at the net asset value per unit of the Fund as of the most recent quarterly
valuation date. '

¢ Mempiltfpol.docs




In order to permit complete investment of funds and to avoid fractional units, any purchase
amount will be assigned a whole number of units in the Fund based on the appropriate per
unit value of the Fund. Any fractional amount of purchase funds which exceeds the market
value of the units assigned will be transferred to the Fund but no units shall be issued. Each
fund whose monies are invested in the Fund shall own an undivided interest in the Fund in
the proportion that the number of units invested therein bears to the total number of all units
comprising the Fund.

Redemption of Fund Units

Redemption of Units shall be paid in cash as soon as practicable after the quarterly valuation
date of the Fund. If the withdrawal is greater than $10 million, advance notice of 30 business
days shall be required prior to the quarterly valuation date. If the withdrawal is for less than
$10 million, advance notice of five business days shall be required prior to the quarterly
valuation date. If the aggregate amount of redemptions requested on any redemption date is
equal to or greater than 10% of the Fund’s net asset value, the Board may redeem the
requested units in installments and on a pro-rata basis over a reasonable period of time that
takes into consideration the best interests of all Fund unitholders. Withdrawals from the
Fund shall be at the market value price per unit determined for the period of the withdrawal
except as follows: withdrawals to correct administrative errors shall be calculated at the per
unit value at the time the error occurred. To be considered an administrative error, the
contribution shall have been invested in the Fund for a period less than or equal to one year
determined from the date of the contribution to the Fund. This provision does not apply to
transfer of units between endowment unitholders.

Securities Lending

The Fund may participate in a securities lending contract with a bank or nonbank security
lending agent for either short-term or long-term purposes of realizing additional income.
Loans of securities by the Fund shall be collateralized by cash, letters of credit, or securities
issued or guaranteed by the U. S. Government or its agencies. The collateral will equal at
least 100% of the current market value of the loaned securities. The contract shall state
acceptable collateral for securities loaned, duties of the borrower, delivery of loaned
securities and collateral, acceptable investment of collateral and indemnification provisions.
The contract may include other provisions as appropriate. The securities lending program
will be evaluated from time-to-time as deemed necessary by the UTIMCO Board. Monthly
reports issued by the agent shall be reviewed by UTIMCO to insure compliance with contract
provisions.

Investor Responsibility

As a shareholder, the Fund has the right to a voice in corporate affairs consistent with those
of any shareholder. These include the right and obligation to vote proxies in a manner
consistent with the unique role and mission of higher education as well as for the economic
benefit of the Fund. Notwithstanding the above, the UTIMCO Board shall discharge its

c:itempitipol.docits




fiduciary duties with respect to the Fund solely in the interest of Fund unitholders and shall
not invest the Fund so as to achieve temporal benefits for any purpose including use of its
economic power to advance social or political purposes.

Amendment of Policy Statement
The Board of Regents reserves the right to amend the Investment Pohcy Statement as it
deems necessary or advisable.

Effective Date
The effective date of this policy shall be August 12February1t, 1999.

Click here for LTF Specific Asset Allocation, Expected Return and Risk, Neutral Position,
Ranges, and Performance Objectives

c:stemptltfpol.doc







THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM
SEPARATELY INVESTED ENDOWMENT, TRUST, AND OTHER
ACCOUNTS INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Purpose

The Separately Invested Endowment, Trust, and Other Accounts are Accounts
established in the name of the Board of Regents of The University of Texas System
(the "Board") as trustee, and are Accounts which are not solely invested in one of the
pooled investment vehicles. These Accounts are not invested in the pooled
investment vehicle because a) they are charitable trusts; b) of investment restrictions
incorporated into the endowment document; c) of inability to sell the gifted
investment asset; or d) they are assets being migrated upon liquidation into a pooled
investment vehicle.

Investment Management ;

Ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the assets of the Accounts rests with the Board.
Section 163 of the Property Code authorizes the U. T. Board to delegate to its
committees, officers or employees of the U. T. System and other agents the authority
to act for the U. T. Board in the investment of the institutional assets for the Account
(endowment and operating accounts). The applicable trust instrument will apply to
the management of trust investments. The assets for the Account shall be governed
through The University of Texas Investment Management Company ("UTIMCO")
which shall a) recommend investment policy for the Accounts, b) determine specific
asset allocation targets, ranges and performance benchmarks consistent with the
Account objectives, and if appropriate c) monitor the Account’s performance against
Account objectives. UTIMCO shall invest the Account’s assets in conformity with
investment policy.

Unaffiliated investment managers may be hired by UTIMCO to improve the
Account’s return and risk characteristics. Such managers shall have complete
investment discretion unless restricted by the terms of their management contracts.
Managers shall be monitored for performance and adherence to investment
disciplines.

Account Administration

UTIMCO shall employ an administrative staff to ensure that all transaction and
Accounting records are complete and prepared on a timely basis. Internal controls
shall be emphasized so as to provide for responsible separation of duties and
adequacy of an audit trail. Custody of assets in the Account shall comply with
applicable law and be structured so as to provide essential safekeeping and trading
efficiency.

citempisiapol.docestempivi30£st6-doe




Investment Objectives

Endowment Accounts-The primary investment objective shall be to invest the
Account in assets that comply with the terms of the applicable endowment agreement,
taking into consideration the investment time horizon of the Account.

Trust Accounts-Trust Accounts are defined as either Foundation Accounts or
Charitable Trusts (Charitable Remainder Unitrusts (CRUT), Charitable Remainder
Annuity Trusts (CRAT), Pooled Income Funds (PIF), Charitable Trusts (CT), or
Charitable Lead Trusts (CLT)). The Board recognizes that the investment objective
of a trust is dependent on the terms and conditions as defined in the trust document of
each trust. The conditions that will affect the investment strategy are a) the trust
payout provisions; b) the ages of the income beneficiaries; c) the ability to sell the
gifted assets that were contributed to the trust; d) and consideration to investment
preferences of the income beneficiaries. Taking these conditions into consideration,
the fundamental investment objectives of the trust will be to generate a low to
moderate growth in trust principal and to provide adequate liquidity in order to meet
the payout provisions of the trust.

Operating Accounts-These are separate operating accounts of the Component
institutions which invest in athe Equity Index Fund B and a the U. S. Debt Index
Fund-B as approved by the Chief Investment Officer. The amount of component
operating funds invested in the index funds is governed by the U. T. System Financial
Policy.

Asset Allocation

Asset allocation is the primary determinant of investment performance and subject to
the asset allocation ranges specified by UTIMCO. Specific asset allocation targets
may be changed from time to time based on the economic and investment outlook.

If appropriate, the Account’s assets shall be allocated among the following broad
asset classes based upon their individual return/risk characteristics and relationships
to other asset classes:

1. Cash Equivalents - are highly reliable in protecting the purchasing power of
current income streams but historically have not provided a reliable return in
excess of inflation. Cash equivalents provide good liquidity under both
deflation and inflation conditions.

2. Fixed Income Investments - offer the best protection for hedging against the
threat of deflation by providing a dependable and predictable source of income
for the Account. Such bonds should be high quality, with reasonable call
protection in order to ensure the generation of current income and preservation
of nominal capital even during periods of severe economic contraction. This

¢:\tempisiapol.docestermpivi3045t6.doe



classification shall include fixed income mutual funds.

3. Equities - provide both current income and growth of income, but their
principal purpose is to provide appreciation for the Account. Historically,
returns for equities have been higher than for bonds over all extended periods.
Therefore, equities represent the best chance of preserving the purchasing
power of the Account. This classification shall include equity mutual funds.

Variable Annuities- These are insurance contracts purchased on the life or lives of the
income beneficiaries and for which the funds underlying the contract are invested in
various mutual funds which offer diversification of the Account’s assets. These
contracts offer some downside market risk protection in case of the income
beneficiary’s death in the early years of the contract. These investment assets are only
appropriate for the charitable remainder trusts.

Asset Allocation Policy

The asset allocation policy and ranges for each trust or endowment herein is
dependent on the terms and conditions of the endowment or trust document. With
respect to the operating accounts, the U. T. System financial policies shall govern. If
possible, the Account’s assets shall be diversified among different types of assets
whose returns are not closely correlated in order to enhance the return/risk profile of
the Account. '

The Board delegates authority to UTIMCO to establish specific asset allocation
targets and ranges for each trust or endowment Account.

Performance Measurement )
The investment performance of the actively managed Accounts, where cost effective,
will be calculated and evaluated annually.

Investment Guidelines

The Accounts must be invested at all times in strict compliance with applicable law.
The primary and constant standard for making investment decisions is the "Prudent
Person Rule."

Investment guidelines include the following:
General
. Investment guidelines for index and other commingled funds managed

externally shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the Investment
Management Contract,

c\tempisiapol.doceMerapiwi30§sto-doe




All investments will be U. S. dollar denominated assets unless held by an
internal or external portfolio manager with discretion to invest in foreign
currency denominated securities.

Investment policies of any unaffiliated liquid investment Account must be
reviewed and approved by the chief investment officer prior to investment of
Account’s assets in such liquid investment Account.

No securities may be purchased or held which would jeopardize, if applicable,
the Account’s tax-exempt status.

No investment strategy or program may purchase securities on margin or use
leverage unless specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

No investment strategy or program employing short sales may be made unless
specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

The Account may utilize Derivative Securities with the approval of the
UTIMCO Board to; a) simulate the purchase or sale of an underlying market
index while retaining a cash balance for fund management purposes; b) to
facilitate trading; c) to reduce transaction costs; d) to seek higher investment
returns when a Derivative Security is priced more attractively than the
underlying security; €) to index or to hedge risks associated with Account
investments; or f) to adjust the market exposure of the asset allocation,
including long and short strategies; provided that; i) no leverage is employed
in the implementation of such Derivative purchases or sales; ii) no more than
5% of the Accounts assets are required as an initial margin deposit for such
contracts; iii) the Account’s investments in warrants shall not exceed more
than 5% of the Account’s net assets or 2% with respect to warrants not listed
on the New York or American Stock Exchanges.

~ Such Derivative Securities shall be defined to be those instruments whose

value is derived, in whole or part, from the value of any one or more
underlying assets, or index of assets (such as stocks, bonds, commodities,
interest rates, and currencies) and evidenced by forward, futures, swap, cap,
floor, option, and other applicable contracts.

UTIMCO shall attempt to minimize the risk of an imperfect correlation
between the change in market value of the securities held by the Account and
the prices of Derivative Security investments by investing in only those
contracts whose behavior is expected to resemble that of the Account’s
underlying securities. UTIMCO also shall attempt to minimize the risk of an
illiquid secondary market for a Derivative Security contract and the resulting
inability to close a position prior to its maturity date by entering into such
transactions on an exchange with an active and liquid secondary market. The
net market value of exposure of Derivative Securities purchased or sold over
the counter may not represent more than 15% of the net assets of the Account.

c:itempisiapol.docestempwt30fst6-doe




In the event that there are no Derivative Securities traded on a particular
market index, the Account may utilize a composite of other Derivative
Security contracts to simulate the performance of such index. UTIMCO shall
attempt to reduce any tracking error from the low correlation of the selected
Derivative Securities with its index by investing in contracts whose behavior
is expected to resemble that of the underlying securities.

UTIMCO shall minimize the risk that a party will default on its payment
obligation under a Derivative Security agreement by entering into agreements
that mark to market no less frequently than monthly and where the
counterparty is an investment grade credit. UTIMCO also shall attempt to
mitigate the risk that the Account will not be able to meet its obligation to the
counterparty by investing the Account in the specific asset for which it is
obligated to pay a return or by holding adequate short-term investments.

The Account may be invested in foreign currency forward and foreign
currency futures contracts in order to maintain the same currency exposure as
its respective index or to protect against anticipated adverse changes in
exchange rates among foreign currencies and between foreign currencies and
the U. S. dollar.

Risk Management
. Credit risk shall be controlled by UTIMCO who is responsible for the
development and maintenance of credit quality standards for the Account.

g : al-valy he-A

- S e entities.

. Counterparty exposure in the area of Repurchase Agreements and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements shall not be more than 5% of the total value of the
securities in the Account shall be placed with any one counterparty.

¢ Diversification of credit risk shall be determined on an account basis.

~ Eligible Investments

Holdings of cash and cash equivalents may include the following:

. Unaffiliated liquid (Money Market Funds) investment funds rated AAAy by
Standard & Poor’s Corporation.

. Approved Tax Exempt unaffliated liquid investment fund.

. Internal short term pooled investment fund managed by UTIMCO.

c:\tempisiapol.doceempiwi30#sté-dee




o Commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and Bankers’
Acceptances must be rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation and
P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

. Floating rate securities, if they are based on a spread over or under a well
known index such as LIBOR or a Constant Maturity Treasury index. No
internally leveraged floating rate securities are permitted (i.e., a coupon
equivalent to a formula that creates a multiplier of an index value). The
following types of floating rate securities are not eligible for investment;
inverse floaters, non-money market based floaters, interest only or principal
only floaters, non-dollar based floaters, and range note floaters.

. Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements must be
transacted with a dealer that is approved by UTIMCO and selected by the
Federal Reserve Bank as a Primary Dealer in U. S. Treasury securities and
rated A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent.

. Each approved counterparty shall execute the Standard Public
Securities Association (PSA) Master Repurchase Agreement with
UTIMCO.

. Eligible Collateral Securities for Repurchase Agreements are limited to
U. S. Treasury securities and U. S. Government Agency securities with
a maturity of not more than 10 years.

. The maturity for a Repurchase Agreement may be from one day to two
weeks.

o The value of all collateral shall be maintained at 102% of the notional
value of the Repurchase Agreement, valued-dialydaily.

. All collateral shall be delivered to the Account’s custodian bank. Tri-
party collateral arrangements are not permitted

. The aggregate amount of repurchase agreements with maturities

greater than seven calendar days may not exceed 10% of the Account’s
total assets.

. Overnight repurchase agreements may not exceed 10% of the
Account’s total assets.

. Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) Dollar Rolls shall be executed as matched
book transactions in the same manner as Reverse Repurchase Agreements
above. As above, the rules for trading MBS Dollar Rolls shall follow the
Public Securities Association standard industry terms.

Holdings of eligible fixed income securities shall be limited to those securities a)
issued by or fully guaranteed by the U. S. Treasury, U. S. Government-Sponsored
Enterprises, or U. S. Government Agencies, and b) issued by corporations and
municipalities. Within this overall limitation:

e Permissible securities for investment include the components of the
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index (LBAGG): investment grade

c:tempisiapol.docestermp i 30£stb-dee




government and corporate securities, agency mortgage pass-through
securities, and asset-backed securities. These sectors are divided into
more specific sub-indices; 1) Government: Treasury and Agency; 2)
Corporate: Industrial, Finance, Utility, and Yankee; 3) Mortgage-backed
securities: GNMA, FHLMC, and FNMA,; and 4) Asset-backed securities.
- In addition to the permissible securities listed above, the following

securities shall be permissible: a) floating rate securities with periodic
coupon changes in market rates issued by the same entities that are
included in the LBAGG as issuers of fixed rate securities; b) medium term
notes issued by investment grade corporations; ¢) zero coupon bonds and
stripped Treasury and Agency securities created from coupon securities;
and d) structured notes issued by LBAGG qualified entities.

e U.S. Domestic Bonds must be rated investment grade, Baa3 or better by
Moody’s Investors Services, BBB- by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, or

an equivalent rating by a nationally recognized rating agency at the time of

-acquisition.

a avatJs

e Not more than 35% of the Account’s fixed income portfolio may be
invested in non-U. S. dollar bonds. Not more than 15% of the Account’s
fixed income portfolio may be invested in bonds denominated in any one
currency.

e Non-dollar bond investments shall be restricted to bonds rated equivalent
to the same credit standard as the U.S. Fixed Income Portfolio.

e Not more than 7.5% of the Account’s fixed income portfolio may be
invested in Emerging Market debt.

¢ International currency exposure may be hedged or unhedged at UTIMCO’s
discretion or delegated by UTIMCO to an external investment manager.

e Permissable securities for investment include Fixed Income Mutual Funds
and Debt Index Funds as approved by the Chief Investment Officer.

e Permissable securities for investment include Fixed Income Variable
Annuity Contracts as approved by the Chief Investment Officer.

c:\tempisiapol.doceMempwi3045to-dee




Equities
L The Account may purchase equity securities as long as it
A. holds no more than 25% of its equity securities in any one industry or
industries (as defined by the standard industry classification code and
supplemented by other reliable data sources) at market.
B. holds no more than 5% of its equity securities in the securities of one
corporation at cost unless authorized by the Chief Investment Officer.

IL. H—The Account may purchase E(juity Mutual Funds and Equity Variables

Annuity Contracts as approved by the Chief Investment Officer.

- The provisions concerning investment in fixed income and equities securities shall not
apply to an endowment in which the agreement prohibits the sale of an equity or fixed
income security. Donor preferences shall be considered in determining the disposition
of a gifted security.

Distributions

Distributions of income or amounts from the Accounts to the beneficiaries shall be
made as soon as practicable, either a) based on the terms of the trust instrument; b)
following the fiscal quarter end for endowments; c¢) on or after the last day of the
month for operating Accounts.

Accounting

c:tempisiapol.docetempivi30sto-doc




The fiscal year of the Accounts shall begin on September 1st and end on August 31st.
Trusts will also have a tax year end which may be different than August 31st. Market
value of the Accounts shall be maintained on an accrual basis in compliance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements, Government Accounting
Standards Board Statements, industry guidelines, or federal income tax laws,
whichever is applicable. Significant asset write-offs or write-downs shall be
approved by the chief investment officer and reported to the UTIMCO Board.

Valuation of Assets

As of the close of business for each month, UTIMCO shall determine the fair market
value of all assets in the Accounts. Such valuation of assets shall be based on the
bank trust custody agreement in effect or other external source if not held in the bank
custody account at the date of valuation.

Securities Lending

The Account may participate in a securities lending contract with a bank or nonbank
security lending agent for either short-term or long-term purposes of realizing
additional income. Loans of securities by the Accounts shall be collateralized by
cash, letters of credit or securities issued or guaranteed by the U. S. Government or its
agencies. The collateral will equal at least 100% of the current market value of the
loaned securities. The contract shall state acceptable collateral for securities loaned,
duties of the borrower, delivery of loaned securities and collateral, acceptable
investment of collateral and indemnification provisions. The contract may include
other provisions as appropriate. The securities lending program will be evaluated
from time to time as deemed necessary by the UTIMCO Board. Monthly reports
issued by the agent shall be reviewed by UTIMCO to insure compliance with contract
provisions.

Investor Responsibility

As a shareholder, the Account has the right to a voice in corporate affairs consistent
with those of any shareholder. These include the right and obligation to vote proxies
in a manner consistent with the unique role and mission of higher education as well as
for the economic benefit of the Account. Notwithstanding the above, the UTIMCO
Board shall discharge its fiduciary duties with respect to the Account solely in the
interest of the beneficiaries and shall not invest the Account so as to achieve temporal
benefits for any purpose, including use of its economic power to advance social or
political purposes.

c:Mempisiapol.doceMempwi304st6-doe



